SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

JOINT DOLPHIN WAHOO AND SNAPPER GROUPER COMMITTEES

Westin Jekyll Island Jekyll Island, GA

March 7, 2016

SUMMARY MINUTES

SNAPPER GROUPER COMMITTEE:

Dr. Michelle Duval, Chair Jessica McCawley, Vice Chair

Anna Beckwith Mel Bell

Zack Bowen

Mark Brown

Jack Cox

Ben Hartig

Charlie Phillips

Chester Brewer

Chris Conklin

Dr. Roy Crabtree

Doug Haymans

Dewey Hemilright

DOLPHIN WAHOO COMMITTEE:

Anna Beckwith, Chair Zack Bowen, Vice Chair

Chester Brewer Chris Conklin
Dr. Roy Crabtree Doug Haymans
Jessica McCawley Dewey Hemilright

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dr. Wilson Laney LTJG Tara Pray

COUNCIL STAFF:

Gregg Waugh
Dr. Mike Errigo
Dr. Kari MacLauchlin
Dr. Brian Cheuvront
John Carmichael

Mike Collins

PARTICIPANTS/OBSERVERS:

Leann Bosarge Dr. Bonnie Ponwith Monica Smit-Brunello Dr. Jack McGovern Dr. George Sedberry Erika Burgess Dr. Marcel Reichert

Additional Observers Attached

The Joint Dolphin Wahoo and Snapper Grouper Committees of the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council convened in the Westin Jekyll Island, Jekyll Island, Georgia, Monday afternoon, March 7, 2016, and was called to order by Chairman Anna Beckwith.

MS. BECKWITH: I am going to call the Joint Dolphin Wahoo and Snapper Grouper Committee to order. Because it is a joint committee, everyone is on the committee, except our Gulf Council liaison, although I always encourage everyone to share and participate. Everyone else is a voting member on all things. Is there any additions or changes to the agenda? Seeing none, the agenda is approved. Dr. McGovern will take us through the Status of the Commercial and Recreational Catches.

DR. MCGOVERN: Thank you, Madam Chair. We have recreational up first, and this is a presentation that was put together by Mike Larkin in our office and Dr. Ponwith's staff. The landings for 2015 are through Wave 5, and it includes both MRIP and headboat landings. In 2014, 37 percent of the recreational ACL was met for dolphin and 38 percent of the wahoo ACL. Through Wave 5 in 2015, 50 percent of the dolphin ACL was met and 56 percent of the wahoo ACL.

This shows the landings by sector for dolphin. It shows that private, very much so, dominates the landings. This is the same thing shown graphically. These are the recreational ACLs for dolphin up here, and the landings are well below the recreational ACL. For wahoo, again, the private sector and the charter sector are high for wahoo. These are the recreational ACLs. It looks like the landings were a little bit above the recreational ACL in 2012, but they've been below that since then.

These are the commercial landings through February 26. We get updates every Friday for commercial landings, and so I also have landings through Friday of last week, on March 4. The landings for dolphin and wahoo are pretty similar through March 4, around over 9,000 pounds for dolphin and about 4,000 for wahoo.

Through March 4 in 2015, the dolphin landings were about 35,000 pounds, and so landings so far this year are less than last year, and I will also note this year that this shows the increase in the commercial ACL from about 1.2-million pounds to about 1.5-million pounds, and this was effective on February 22.

MS. BECKWITH: Great. Thank you. Are there any questions for Dr. McGovern? It is encouraging to see our recreational landings increasing a bit, and so maybe the economic downturn is on its way to its endpoint. Next is the Status of Amendments under Formal Review and Dr. McGovern.

DR. MCGOVERN: Okay, and there are several actions here. Amendment 7, Dolphin Wahoo Amendment 7, is part of Snapper Grouper Amendment 33. This is the fillet amendment. It allows fillets from dolphin and wahoo harvested in the Bahamas to be brought into the U.S. EEZ. It requires skin intact on fillets of dolphin wahoo and snapper grouper species, and it specifies the number of fillets that can be brought into the U.S.

The Notice of Availability for the amendment published on September 17, and the comment period ended on November 16 of last year. The proposed rule published on October 7, and the comment

period ended on November 6, and the final rule published on December 28, and the regulations were effective on January 27.

Amendment 8 is included with Amendment 34 in the Snapper Grouper FMP, and this revises accountability measures for a number of snapper grouper species, and also golden crab, and it changed the allocations for dolphin. It changed the allocations from 92.46 percent recreational and 7.54 commercial to 90 percent recreational and 10 percent commercial. As we see right here, it increased the commercial ACL.

The Notice of Availability published on July 15, and the comment period ended on September 14. The proposed rule published on September 29, and the comment period ended on October 29, and the final rule published on January 22. The regulations were effective on February 22.

The next amendment is the Regulatory Amendment 1. This is the trip limit amendment for dolphin. It would establish a 4,000-pound commercial trip limit when 75 percent of the commercial ACL was met, and that amendment was submitted to us, I think, last week and -- No, it was earlier. I am getting confused with the other amendments. That amendment is under review in the Region, the proposed rule package is.

Then the last thing is the control date. On February 4, NOAA Fisheries published an Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking to set a control date of June 30, 2015, for the dolphin commercial sector of the dolphin wahoo fishery, and the comments on the control date must be received by March 7. That's all I have, Madam Chair.

MS. BECKWITH: Thank you so much. Before we get into the Dolphin Wahoo Amendment 10 and Snapper Grouper Amendment 44, I had asked if John would come up and give us a history on the dolphin ACL and how we got to our current ACL, and that presentation is under the Additional Materials on the website, if it's not in your briefing book.

MR. CARMICHAEL: Anna had raised the question of just what was the basis for the dolphin ABC and fishing level recommendations and where were they derived. It goes back to the SSC in April of 2010. We were first setting catch limits on many species and had an ABC control rule for data-limited stocks.

There has not been an assessment of dolphin. There was an exploratory assessment done, which you see referenced in a number of places. It was done by Mike Prager when he was at the Beaufort Laboratory. It was done in 2000. It really just applied a production model to cobia as a way to try and see if there was -- I think largely to see if an assessment could be done and what questions maybe stand in the way of getting an accepted assessment for that species.

In that case, it was all of the basically North Atlantic cobia. It was the Gulf of Mexico and the cobia off the Atlantic combined. Dolphin. Sorry. I think a lot about cobia these days, but, yes, it was dolphin combined. Boy, that's a slip for things that are going to come later.

Yes, it was dolphin in the Gulf of Mexico and dolphin in the Atlantic, and it was some growth work which was done in the late 1960s and some efforts to try and get a commercial fishery CPUE, which are things you need for the production model. It's really just been forth as a manuscript.

To my knowledge, I don't think it went farther than that. I am not aware of it, for example, being peer reviewed.

At that time, SEDAR did not exist, but it didn't come to the SSC for review, and so we don't have a review of it there, and it did make its way to the level of say a laboratory document in a numbered series or an agency technical memorandum, which does have some level of review. I think it truly was exploratory, and so there was an attempt, but then that means when the SSC set its fishing level recommendations that it falls within the data-limited stocks.

Initially, the SSC had a process whereby they attempted to define an OFL, based on reference landings, and then an ABC. Then the ABC was reduced from that OFL reference point, based on applying a range of criteria, very similar to what you see for the assessed stocks. Now, that led to some concerns, mainly that when you're just dealing with landings, can you really call it an OFL?

The council was very concerned with some of the uncertainty reductions and what they did with the landings levels. The reference periods tend to be mean landings, and there was a lot of discussions if you have landings that are a zig-zag pattern and you set a limit at the mean, will suddenly all of those higher ones that you observed, you're now saying are dangerous?

There was a lot of discussion over the year about whether or not that was really the intent. If you're dealing with uncertainty data, then you know you've got to accept that the mean might reflect the long-term tendency, but maybe it's not so good as a line in the sand that you shall not go above this without causing trouble.

That led to a lot of debates by the SSC, leading around to April of 2011. At this point, there were discussions with agency lawyers at the SSC of how to deal with OFL, and it was acknowledged that OFL could be stated as unknown, and so you see that change taking place by April. The SSC was told that as long as they discussed all the landings and they built a record and they really looked at each individual species and they felt the OFL was unknown, they were justified in that recommendation. The key thing was that they went through a process, and they considered the data, and they didn't just say that because there is no assessment that OFL is unknown. That's the exercise they went through in 2011.

They developed a decision tree approach, which was added to the ABC control rule for dealing with the unassessed stocks. As a result of that exercise, they ended up with reference period of 1999 to 2008 for dolphin, and their reference statistic was the third highest. Here, you get into the difference between the mean and the third highest as being the point where you draw the line that you don't want to go above. That was a very critical decision and it had a lot to do with the recommendations that then came out of this.

That's where we got the recommendation for the ABC of 14,596,216. That was your initial recommendation. When that was put into place, there was the revision to the MRIP data which went in, and so in the amendment for the dolphin, this changes to fifteen-million, because of the adjustment for the MRIP. It's still using the same years and it's still using the third highest, but the value was a little bit different because of the MRIP calibration. In the Comprehensive ACL, this has also been discussed, ABC equals ACL equals OY. That was what was used in the Comprehensive Amendment.

Here, you have the 15.3-million-pound dolphin line. That's the purple, and then this is the landings trends from the recreational -- I guess this was the total that I pulled. Yes, it's mostly, obviously, the recreational. You can see that there was a period of kind of increasing landings in the early part, to around the early 2000s, and then the landings dropped.

I remember the SSC talking about this trend, and talking about this fishery in particular, when they picked this period, and one of things, obviously, which I expect people would ask here today is, well, what happened there to explain that big decline in landings. The FMP went into place in 2003, and so that corresponds with that.

That made me just look a little bit at the FMP, and it has a ten-fish recreational possession limit. I noticed, in looking and trying to find the dates when it went into place, that it was predicting a 7 percent reduction in weight, but actually it went from about a 39 percent in reduction in weight, and that number obviously is not 4.4, but you can see the landings reduction there, from the recreational fishery hitting over thirteen-million pounds to hitting around seven-million pounds, an average of about eight-million pounds. It was a 39 percent reduction. I will have to figure out what that 4.4 was actually supposed to be. I think I hit a wrong key there. That's the thing with doing things on Friday afternoon, but I think that we get the point that -- What interested me is we predicted 7 percent with those regulations. Maybe there were other things that had amplifying effects.

At this point, that would take a lot more work that what I was able to do by Friday, but we could dig into that, maybe if someone were interested at some point, but what you also see is that there's, even after that first drop, the landings got up around ten-million pounds there and then have sort of tapered downward.

There was a lot of discussion when the SSC was dealing with this in 2011. Folks might remember there were concerns that the high fuel prices and the economic downturn was really keeping people from going offshore fishing as much, and I think there was a thought that by now certainly things would have kind of turned that corner. Going back to 2011 and looking at data through 2010, and really thinking that maybe this fishery, once the economy recovered and fuel prices got low, it might be back up bumping against ten-million pounds, easily, if not higher.

I think we certainly now, with a couple more years under our belt, we see that hasn't really been the case, and I guess it doesn't seem that offshore fishing, in general, has reached back to the peaks that we saw. It has recovered some, but I know in just some glances at MRIP effort that it doesn't seem that that offshore component has gone back to the levels it was before gas hit five-dollars a gallon, almost, and the economic issues that hit.

How much of that is at play in what's going on with dolphin versus other things, it really would just be conjecture at this point. We don't have an assessment for this species and assessing it, obviously anything can theoretically be assessed.

It would be challenging, because aging these things are quite tough, and I would think certainly we know now, in comparison of looking at that 2000 assessment, there was updated age work that was done, actually by a student of Jeff Buckel's, who is on our SSC, who is from North Carolina, which changed the growth patterns quite a bit.

They worked with otoliths from dolphin and looking at daily increments, as opposed to scales and things, which were done back in the 1960s. There is a little bit more information in dolphin, but I think with something that grows that fast, our typical methods being tracking decline of cohorts from one year to the next, something that grows really fast kind of can be tough in that regard. You might have to go into some shorter time periods. It could be done, but at this point, there isn't a dolphin assessment on the horizon in the future, and so we have the data-limited methods that we've used for the ACL.

MS. BECKWITH: Are there any questions for John?

MR. BREWER: John, you mentioned the Comprehensive Amendment that was ABC equals, I think, OFL equals OY. I'm assuming that, when you say comprehensive, that that means across the board, for all fisheries? Is that correct, or is it just this fishery?

MR. CARMICHAEL: No, the council put that into place for many fisheries, I think, at that time, certainly all of the data-limited fisheries. I think there were some which may have been slightly different, but exactly which ones that would be escapes me at the moment.

DR. DUVAL: It was all the unassessed species. We were trying to meet the Magnuson mandates at the time to have annual catch limits in place for everything, and Brian was actually the council rep from North Carolina at that time, and so I came in on the tail-end of it, but it was all the unassessed snapper grouper species and it was dolphin wahoo. Mackerel had just been done in Amendment 18. It was cobia and golden crab and a lot of species.

MS. BECKWITH: As we're going to spend the next year, or maybe two, looking at the dolphin fishery as a whole and contemplating how we want to see this fishery be prosecuted in the long run, is there any value, John, to having the SSC go back and take a look at current ABC and the trends and give us sort of an okay, they still think we're on the right track with these numbers or have some discussion that maybe some reconsideration of our ABC would be needed, based on the trends of what we're seeing?

MR. CARMICHAEL: I think you can always ask them to do that. Their question, I would think, at first, would be, one, what new information is there that they could maybe adjust this? Is there information to do this through some of the data-limited assessment techniques which have been developed since we've been working under this ABC/ACL mandate?

They would probably really feel like having some analysis of some other alternative would help them give you a difference, because I think, otherwise, you get into the thing of you just really don't know the relationship between landings and the status of the stock.

Because we have very little other information for many species, we've been forced to use landings to infer something, and the general rule the SSC applied was if it didn't -- If there was no indication that the landings were impacting the stock negatively, then they felt like the current landings was a good indicator of what the stock may be able to produce.

There were some stocks where the trends were downward and they might have had a survey or something which showed them some concern, and there were a few stocks where they didn't use

this third highest and they used, I believe, it was a median, in some where there was concerns or some other, or they could alter the reference period.

I think, in the case of dolphin, if council members perhaps felt like the continued downward trend in landings were an indication of concerns in the stock, then that could be something they could discuss, but I think they would like to know if people believe that. Do people believe that those higher landings levels were not sustainable? I am trying to remember what landings were even going back historically. It's really -- This covers most of the period over which we have landings.

I think if there are people on the council who say, hey, we're looking at this figure and we think maybe that landings level was too high, looking at what's gone on now and what's happened in the last few years, if you wanted to ask them to reconsider the basis for ABC in dolphin, based on the last ten years of landings trends, then it's certainly within your right to ask them to do that, yes.

MS. BECKWITH: Okay. That's good information for the committee to consider.

DR. PONWITH: Just as long as we're on the topic of data-limited, first of all, I just want to thank you for the really good summary of the sequence of events over the last several years with respect to these. The Caribbean just finished the peer review of their data-limited stock assessment that began in the fall, and I think they assessed six stocks. We're waiting to get that report, but the word on the street is that report is going to be quite favorable for our ability to use the results of that stock assessment for management purposes.

As you know, the Gulf of Mexico is gearing up to do a data-limited assessment coming up this year as well, and it would be a really good opportunity to watch how that assessment progresses and kind of go to school on the Gulf's experience and the Caribbean's experience, as you think yourselves about are there stocks for which we have enough data to support something more robust than average landings, but do not have the data to support an age-structured full-blown benchmark stock assessment. Again, I think that's just going to be something that's going to be really valuable to keep an eye on.

MS. BECKWITH: Okay. Are there any other comments?

MR. HEMILRIGHT: Looking at your chart that said "ABC Updates in Amendment 5 to Incorporate Revised MRIP Estimates", it's my thought that the recreational industry never caught more than -- Probably their highest was in 1997, somewhere around ten or twelve-million pounds. Basically, just with the revised estimate, the only thing it's done is just increase the -- For lack of my better words, just a hypothetical increase in what they've caught.

I don't believe the recreational industry has ever caught 15.3-million pounds, as it's showing here on the revised trend in 2000. Basically, just looking at the numbers, and I guess you have to go by it, it's just kind of artificial increase what their catches is, because if that was the case, you would be walking on dolphin back in the 2000s and different things like that. Historically, it's been pretty much a 90/10 recreational/commercial split, and so I think you have to take it kind of with a grain of salt, looking at your revised landings and the increase of that.

Some of the other things, you know with fuel prices, and in some of the years you might not have had as many hurricanes. That has a lot to do with the reason why maybe the recs aren't catching

as many fish as they used to or different things like that. I think that's kind of important to take a look at or just throw out.

MS. BECKWITH: Thank you, Dewey.

MR. HARTIG: I think one of the interesting things about dolphin is there is no relationship between the recreational catch and the commercial catches whatsoever, and I mean I would really like to have some insight as to why that's happening. I mean is the commercial HMS fishery so far outside of where recreational fishermen go that that is why their catches are different? Are they targeting a different group of dolphin that our recreational fishermen never come in contact with? I mean those are questions that I had asked, and I see some hands going up over there and maybe we can get some --

DR. DUVAL: That was exactly what my comment was going to be about. I know we had our staff do a little bit of analysis last year when -- I mean they do this every year as part of just a commercial and recreational harvest update, but there's like an inverse relationship between recreational landings of dolphin versus recreational landings of bluefin tuna.

When the tuna are around -- Not bluefin, but just when it's a good tuna year, the dolphin landings go down, and when it's not such a great tuna year, dolphin landings go up. Just seeing those two lines go back and forth opposite, it was pretty interesting. I don't know if that's the same for other states, but certainly off of North Carolina.

MR. HEMILRIGHT: Being up to answer that question, at the dock I'm at, we've got four eighty-foot longline boats, and a lot of those boats start fishing about this time of year off of the Bahamas, and so they are quite outside of the range of the recreational fishing.

MS. BECKWITH: Is there anyone else? Thank you for that, John, and that sort of leads into another part of the discussion, which is what is the definition of optimum yield? If the committee is comfortable with this ABC, and we feel like the trends that we're seeing don't indicate any need to reconsider, or have the SSC reconsider the trends that we're seeing, then this is what we have to work with, but we have our ABC equals OY, and that's how we have it set up right now.

We have the recreational ABC -- Our recreational ACL is quite high, and we're not achieving our ACL. There have been lots of questions that have come up about, well, if we're not achieving our ACL, is the recreational community achieving their optimum yield?

I think it's worth having a discussion of what we consider optimum yield to be for the recreational sector in general, but, specifically, we can certainly have one on what we consider optimum yield to be for dolphin. I know that this is Chester's favorite topic, and so I will let him lead this part of the discussion. Go ahead, Chester.

MR. BREWER: I'm uncomfortable with OY equaling ABC across the board, not just with regard to dolphin. I spoke with a prior council member about why that occurred, because it sort of flies in the face of Magnuson, quite frankly, in the definition of OY that is in the Act, and the explanation that was given to me, and Dr. Duval touched on this, was this was done in reaction to essentially a crash plan when Magnuson came into play, or at least I should say when the new definition in Magnuson was not MSY anymore and it was OY and how to meet that, and it looked

like there was a potential for even more cutting back of the different fisheries and quotas than the council was even remotely comfortable with.

In an attempt to get the quota as high as possible, that step was taken, to equate OY solely to the ABC. OY is more than that, and it's more complicated than that. OY takes into account socioeconomic considerations, and, before everybody gets upset, economic is not the only consideration, but it's now coming back, maybe to sort of haunt us, in that in a number of recreational -- In some recreational fisheries, and dolphin is a particular example of that, you now have an ABC that, for the recreational sector, may be a good deal higher than it should be.

That is because -- When I say higher than it should be, and normally that's a real good thing. Not if you're trying to manage the fishery properly, but if you're trying to maximize the quota for one side or the other, you might want to go at it in that fashion, but it comes back to bite you when you hear statements continuously with regard to dolphin that, hey, you recreational guys are not catching your OY and you're wasting fish and we need to reallocate this fishery.

It may well be that in the recreational side, in which abundance is so important, that the OY -- Maybe you want to be catching 50 percent of the allowable maximum, because recreational has much different concerns and much different criteria that they judge a fish by. It's not are you able to get the most number of fish as economically as possible, but it's about opportunity and it's about abundance. You can reasonably expect that if you go out fishing for a particular fish, whatever it is, that you've got some reasonable chance of catching that fish and bringing home a few for supper.

With all that said, and I've gone on way too long, but I would be interested in the council actually taking a look at OY and the definitions that are used, not just in dolphin, but across the board. I think we need perhaps a more modern and more compliant definition that we're using, not just in dolphin, and, as we go through some anticipated questions with regard to allocations in different fisheries, I think we need to be taking a look at OY across the board, meaning both recreational and commercial, for the different fisheries. With that, I will be quiet.

MS. BECKWITH: Thank you, Chester, and I agree with much of what Chester says. I think that for the recreational fisheries, and, in my opinion, for the for-hire industry, that having ease of access to the fish by having a large abundance of species in the water certainly is something that the recreational community looks favorably upon, and that should be taken into consideration in our definition of recreational optimum yield, which, of course, is very different from what the commercial guys are interested in.

I guess my next question would be to Roy. What ways can we sort of bring our definition of optimum yield back into sorts? I think you mentioned during the last committee meeting that our definition of optimum yield for dolphin is sort of out of sorts. What are some methods that we can take into consideration where we would be able to bring it back to a little bit more towards our current reality?

DR. CRABTREE: I think we set a lot of our optimum yield specifications in the ACL Amendment, and we set them all along similar lines, as I recall, and so if you feel like -- If you're in agreement with Chester's argument that in this case we want a premium on maintaining a high standing stock of fish in the water, that would be an argument for setting OY at a lower level. Maybe you need

to start talking more about the differences in terms of objectives for the two sectors that you're managing and how you would then parse the OY along with the allocation.

I think there are lots of ways to do it, but I think the main thing is to give some thought to what your objectives are in terms of managing the fishery, what you're trying to achieve, whether it's abundance or whether it's to harvest as many fish as you can without it resulting in overfishing, and I don't know that we've really ever had that discussion and come to a conclusion.

DR. DUVAL: I think one thing that plays into some of the comments that Roy made is that the National Standard 1 Guidelines are currently in a state of revision, and there are multiple changes that are being proposed to address this very question regarding optimum yield and to provide councils more guidance between the relationship between setting of an annual catch limit versus setting of optimum yield.

I don't recall exactly what the timeframe is for those guideline revisions to be complete. I thought that we heard at the CCC meeting that they might be -- That an updated draft would be available for folks to see in May, and I only bring this up because I think that's going to be informative to any future discussion we have regarding OY, and I think everything that's been said around the table here is extremely valuable.

I guess the one caution I would have is that we not go too far down this road, just within this committee meeting today, because I think that kind of discussion of OY is very important and one of the ones that we would have to have within the allocation amendment that we have spoken about that we wanted to do post the snapper grouper visioning process, whereby your goals for different species, as Roy mentioned, could be different whether you're trying to have a very large standing stock to maximize opportunity versus wanting to maximize harvest rate.

I am not trying to necessarily curtail the conversation, I guess. Because it is such an important one and it's not something that was actually noticed as an agenda item or an action item, I am concerned that the public would want to be able to have some notice about that conversation as well, and so I will shut up, and it sounded like Roy wanted to respond to something I said about the National Standard 1 Guidelines revisions.

DR. CRABTREE: My recollection was the goal was to finalize those sometime in the summer. Now, that's dependent on if Congress does something with the Magnuson Act which would cause it, and it has to go through OMB review and a number of those kinds of things, but, assuming Congress doesn't reauthorize the Act, I think the goal was to have them finalized sometime in the course of the summer.

MR. CARMICHAEL: One thing to think of, as we get into the alphabet soup, is what it is you wish to achieve and which of these many parameters you have to work with is the right one to use. OY is reduced from MSY, per the Sustainable Fisheries Act back in 1996. That's when that language came in.

Then when we had the Reauthorized Act, which brought in the OFLs, ACLs, ACTs, ABCs, and all of that, OY still existed, but think about the things that have impacts on what you do as management. The OFL is mapped to the MSY and the sustainable yield on an annual basis. The ABC is reduced from the OFL for the assessment uncertainty, and then, from there, you get into

the management restrictions, and so you have to set your management things that don't exceed the ABC of your SSC. That gives your annual catch limit, ACL, and your annual catch target, ACT.

The council could reduce from ABC to ACL, and the examples given for doing that were things like ecosystem functionality. The classic was if you had a forage species, then you may want to set some of that aside to feed all your other species that are out there.

Then, between ACL and ACT, the intent was that that accounts for the management uncertainty. Let's say you knew that you managed your quotas and you tended to stay within 10 percent either way, 90 to 110 percent. Then, when it was all said and done, then maybe you would want to set seasons or set a commercial closure when you got to 90 percent of the commercial.

In the case of the recreational, you said you want to use the ACT to set bags and seasons, and so we'll see that in cobia, and intentionally cobia this time, that you're seeing targets at like 500, or I guess 520, perhaps, for next year, 520,000, which is a good bit below the actual ACL, and so you're using the ACT to say what your seasons should be to keep yourself from going over your ACL.

Accountability measures are tied to going over ACLs, and nowhere in there, in the thing I'm talking about now, is OY coming in as something which would affect how you said you will set bags and seasons or how you would apply accountability measures in the fishery.

If the idea is to set aside some dolphin for ecosystem functionality or to preserve higher availability, then you may want to consider doing that when you set like your recreational ACT or when you set your ACL, because discussing the OY might get something at the intent, but it's not clear to me how that gets translated into how you manage your fishery and how you set your specifications and then where you apply your accountability measures.

MS. BECKWITH: Right now, we do have an ACT for recreational dolphin. We just don't close the season based on it, or we don't have one at all for -- We don't have one for dolphin? Okay. Great conversation, and is there any other comments on this?

MR. PHILLIPS: I think we had talked to Monica at the last meeting about kind of where we are on OY, and, you know, to Chester's comment, maybe we do need to leave fish in the water to have a higher standing stock, but we're going to need to go to the public to be transparent and hear from them, and then there's the emails that we're seeing about possible sale of dolphin wahoo.

If you put that in the mix, then it's going to change the equation a lot, and so we're going to have to get a lot of comment, and it would be good to know kind of where we are now. Then we'll see where they're going down the road, but we're going to have to walk with some open ears as we go through this.

MS. BECKWITH: I agree, and that's why I keep saying that you guys are going to see me up here a lot for the next couple of years. Any other comments?

MR. HARTIG: I appreciate Bonnie's comments about the data-poor Caribbean and Gulf information that we're going to be privy to in the future. That's a great concern, but, to me, I look at this and there's a lot of paper fish out there on dolphin, in my estimation. The other thing we

don't do anymore as a council is we don't look at some of these things that are happening and we don't make adjustments in our landings because we see things happening.

We wait for assessments. We wait for scientific advice before we do things. We don't have to do that. You can change the ABC on dolphin today. I mean you could say I don't believe that the ABC is reflective of the productivity of the stock, based on the recreational catches going down over the last fourteen years. You might say that needs to be lower, and so then we get into this argument about OY.

We have this great big ABC on dolphin, which everybody grabs on to and goes, you know, you have to give some of this to the commercial, when in fact the predominant fishery for dolphin, which is the recreational fishery and always has been, is on a declining trend over the last -- Golly, it's almost ten-years, or twelve-years, anyway.

To me, I mean we could get rid of some of those paper fish, if you really wanted to, by having an informed new ABC for dolphin. That way, you get away from some of these pressures that people want to, the commercial industry in particular, want to take away from dolphin. I don't believe the dolphin fishery is anywhere near as productive as it was before all of the island nations and everywhere that has an airport in the Caribbean and anywhere else in the ocean is as productive as it once was, based on what the catches are today.

Dolphin cross boundaries between different oceans and other things that we don't even know about, and so all that production of dolphin, which goes all through the entire United States -- I have to ask Jack or Charlie about all the imported dolphin that comes in, but I know when I was in the business, my God, the amount of imported dolphin dwarfs the U.S. supply by I don't know how much.

I think it's 85 percent that I point to as one number of what comes in from outside, and I don't know that that's specific to dolphin or just fish in general, but I know that most of the dolphin that comes into the United States is not domestic dolphin. It's imported, and there is a relationship between what's taken out of dolphin in the entire ocean and ours. To me, I think we could head off some of this by having an informed conversation about what we really think the ACL for dolphin should be, or the ABC. That's just some stuff I throw out there.

MS. BECKWITH: Thanks, Ben. I agree.

MR. COX: Ben, that's a good point, because it is. You know these other foreign countries are freezing dolphin left and right, as hard as they can go, and, just a couple of weeks ago, the importers were selling dolphin as high as seven-dollars a pound, and so there has been a lot of change in that fishery, and that fish, they cross a lot of oceans, and so good point.

MS. BECKWITH: Zack or Chris, do you guys have anything? No? Anyone else? Ben, I agree with you. I also have worries about the paper fish and the ACL being too high in general, and, as Michelle and John mentioned, maybe using a recreational ACT and putting a recreational ACT for dolphin in place is a good way to manage for that abundance that we're looking to retain in the water and give the opportunity -- If the charter industry and the recreational start to grow back, it gives those fish an opportunity to be there.

Between last year and this year, I think we had a two-million-pound increase in the recreational ACL that was caught, and so, to me, that's a good indicator that some of the recreational effort is coming back. If there's no other comments, I guess we will transition into discussion on Amendment 10, and I will pass that over to Brian.

DR. CHEUVRONT: Thanks, Madam Chair. I think some of this discussion that you've been having is rather germane to this potential amendment that you had discussed in December, where you, at full council, decided you wanted to consider a joint amendment for looking at dolphin allocations between sectors as well as for yellowtail snapper. That's how this amendment came to be.

If you will recall, we had, at the December meeting, sort of a laundry list of potential dolphin actions, and you all decided, in December, just to take the allocation portions of those actions for dolphin and take them with some allocation actions for yellowtail snapper and create a new amendment, which is what we're now presenting to you as Dolphin Wahoo Amendment 10/Snapper Grouper 44, which is why we now have this joint committee meeting.

The additional actions regarding dolphin that are not in this amendment are being set aside for a potential Dolphin Wahoo Amendment 11, and so those additional actions haven't been dropped off the face of the Earth here, so to speak, but they've just been deferred, according to your discussions that you had in December about what your priorities were. I just wanted to make sure that everybody understands that's where we are.

I would like to seriously caution you about wanting to go through and dealing with allocation issues, when in fact you may decide that you want to make some more fundamental changes further up the line, whether it is to modify the ABC for dolphin or set a recreational ACT, whatever you want to do. What this amendment basically consists of, at this point, are some potential actions, or actually concepts, because it's really at the concept stage now. There are no actions yet.

This is truly a white paper with just ideas of different ways that, if you want to go forward and look at allocations for these two species, there are some different kinds of things that this council can look at that it has not really considered in the past, but are kinds of things that maybe have been considered by other councils for other species.

What you see in this short white paper is some discussion of potential ways to look at allocations. There is a couple of other documents that are in the briefing book that literally are -- They're things you've discussed in the past. There are things that have lots of -- They're in there for the value of the tables and things that are in there, I guess is what I really what I want to say. It summarizes primarily the dolphin landings and a number of different ways that we've looked at it over the most recent years, depending on how much you want to get into the weeds in looking on that at this meeting.

I think part of the take-home that we would like to receive, and I'm speaking as council staff, is that we would like to get some direction from you as to how you would like to proceed at this point. Do you want us to continue going on and looking at development of an amendment that looks at allocations now?

That would mean would you want then to -- The next step would be to go on to scoping and taking this out and seeing what the public thinks about these potential ideas, and then you could direct staff to then develop some actions and alternatives to bring back to you in June. We can proceed through some of these allocation ideas, but understand that -- I guess my advice is be careful to don't put the cart before the horse here, if there's something else that you want to do.

MS. BECKWITH: Thanks, Brian, and I think that, and I will let Chester comment in a moment, but I think a way forward would be to go through these ideas and have a bit of discussion on each of them and see how the committee feels, sort of positives and negatives on each idea, and then if there's any that we want to see moved forward, we can continue some development on those. Did you guys have comments right now?

MR. BREWER: A lot of this got triggered by the disaster that happened in dolphin last year when the fishery got closed down, in I believe June. We have now accomplished getting an allocation shift of 300,000 or 400,000 pounds to commercial. We know that upcoming there is going to be some guidelines, hopefully, to better inform us how we are to work with OY and how we are to define it and use it.

Right now, I think that we're certainly in a wait-and-see position, from the standpoint of are we going to have happen in 2016 what happened in 2015. Hopefully not. Hopefully the two steps that have been taken fairly recently are going to forestall that, or prevent it.

We also don't know right now what these guidelines are going to be saying, and I really think that a lot of the ideas that are set forth in this paper that we need to be in a wait-and-see position, to see if we have the problem again in dolphin that we had, and I'm hoping that we do not, and, for that reason, I would say that this could be -- There are other things that are more important right now than going through the quota ideas here and having staff time spent on that.

I think having a big, frank discussion about OY and what you want to see OY be, or at least how do you best comply with the requirements of Magnuson in setting OY -- It's a much bigger discussion, but I think it's one that we need to have, and I think it would take priority over this white paper.

MR. CONKLIN: I just wanted to see, when we go through talking about some of these ideas, if we could kind of broaden our outlook on what species are we doing. I thought that the general kind of moving out of visioning and still not tacking allocation, hard allocation shifts, this would be a tool, something sort of generic, that we could use for multiple species.

Just because dolphin and yellowtail have had some recent problems, there's plenty of other species that commercial and recreational guys have suffered for a number of years with closures and just have learned to live with them, but if there's any room for doing any kind of good, I say we do it. That's all I have to say.

DR. DUVAL: I agree with Chris in regards to the ideas presented in the white paper. I think if we're going to develop a tool that could be used for temporary shifts of allocation that it should be able to be used broadly. You know we had some discussion about that, I think at the last meeting. We discussed this two years ago, in regards to the Spanish mackerel fishery.

The Gulf Council has been discussing this in regards to king mackerel, and so I think there are a number of different pieces that we could look at in terms of temporary allocation shifts. Again, I agree with Chris. I think that any tool we develop really needs to be something that can be used for any species, but I also think that it might be more important to focus on an amendment regarding comprehensive management of the dolphin fishery, because I think a couple of the ideas that are in this white paper, like, namely, looking at allocations, or sub-allocations, of ACL for different gear types or something like that, that those are things that we might want to tackle within that amendment, remembering that this is a fishery that we manage for the entire coastline, and that there are going to be different considerations, seasonally and regionally, for that fishery that we need to be very much aware of.

Gregg has reached out, again, to both the Mid-Atlantic and New England Councils. We have our Mid-Atlantic liaison here to speak to some of those concerns, and I think in the future that we might have a liaison from the New England Council, as we move forward looking at comprehensive measures for the fishery.

What we did in December was really a stopgap measure to try to prevent a closure, and I think we were very clear on the record about that, that down the road things might change, but we just wanted to make sure that we would at least be able to make it through 2016 without any potential closure.

I fully recognize that there is some dissatisfaction with what the council did in regards to a trip limit and how that might impact other sectors of the distant fleets that operate throughout the coast, and so that's a long-winded way of saying I agree with Chester that perhaps we might want to spend more time on that. Thank you.

MS. BECKWITH: I agree, and I'm sure that as we develop this that we can develop it in a way that we're creating a tool in the toolbox that can shift in either direction, commercial to recreational or recreational to commercial, and then maybe add in some additional ways that we can decide what species it's utilized for, so we can do it on a broader way.

MR. PHILLIPS: I agree with Michelle. I don't want to stop and wait on if and when we're going to get final direction from Washington. I think we should keep talking to our stakeholders, and we don't want to put the cart ahead of the horse, but we need to keep moving, so we've got a general direction on where we would like to go, where our fishermen need to go. Then, as they give us direction and definitions, then incorporate it accordingly, but I think stopping and waiting on them would be a disservice.

MS. BECKWITH: I don't think we often have the opportunity to spend time talking about big ideas without having to move directly into actions. We have a bunch of different ideas presented to us, and this is a good opportunity to sort of chat about them and see what cream floats to the top.

MR. HAYMANS: That's what I was going to suggest. We've got an hour-and-twenty minutes left. I know you have an Other Business item that you want to talk about, but if that was all that was on the agenda that I saw, we could tackle the white paper, striking the names "dolphin" and "yellowtail", and let's talk in generalities about it, because it's only two ideas there. Let's spend an hour beating that horse.

MR. BOWEN: As I listen to Chris and Dr. Duval and Mr. Haymans and you as well, Madam Chair, I'm trying to think of a species where, as we talk about rolling allocations or soft shifts, I am trying to think where, from the recreational perspective, that it would be a benefit, and if somebody could tell me maybe a species that we manage where it might could be a benefit for the recreational sector, I might be a little more inclined to have those discussions, but, at this point, I am not so sure that that's the path we should go down.

MS. BECKWITH: I'm a little surprised and pleased to hear you say that, Zack.

MR. BOWEN: Wait a minute. We agree on something?

MS. BECKWITH: I am also struggling to identify a species in my head where a shift in allocation, a temporary shift, would benefit the recreational, but maybe cobia. I don't know.

MR. BOWEN: There may be one, but I'm just not aware of it, and I think all of our -- I won't say all, but the majority of our recreational landings are overestimated, and so, therefore, I don't see a benefit for an in-season soft allocation shift coming from the commercial sector.

MR. COX: Zack, don't you think a lot of the recreational fishermen like to go out and eat fresh seafood for dinner?

MR. BOWEN: I know I would.

MS. BECKWITH: Ben, and then we're going to start talking about these specific ideas.

MR. HARTIG: I mean I've heard from every one of my hook-and-line people. I've had more calls on dolphin than anything else in the recent past, in my area, and every one of them asked when we were going to separate the sectors. Every one of them said that was their most critical concern, was to separate the longline and the hook and line sectors, and we needed to do that sooner than later.

My fear is that, looking at the landings, as they're going up and up on the longline, and it's an alarming increase in the longline fishery, our concern is that we're going to keep getting shut out of this fishery, and the hook and line guys want to see us tackle that, above everything else.

MS. BECKWITH: Okay, and so that's where we're going to start. We're going to start with the commercial gear sector allocations for longline and hook and line. We've heard Ben's comments on that, and that his constituents have a large concern about that. Are there any other comments and desire to see us continue development of that particular idea?

MR. BOWEN: To Mr. Hartig's point, I think soft in-season allocation shifts are a completely different topic than sector separation.

MS. BECKWITH: He's talking about gear separation and not sector separation.

MR. BOWEN: He used the term "sector separation".

MS. BECKWITH: Right, but he meant gear. He meant separation of longline and the hook and line beneath the commercial.

MR. BOWEN: I was just going on what he said, and so I will retract my comment, and thank you.

MR. HEMILRIGHT: How many years has the commercial side been shut down, and, alluding to Ben's comments there of the gear sector separation? Had this amendment that placed the extra 300,000 pounds been put into effect, that took probably longer, and please correct me if I'm wrong, but nine months that was sitting on somebody's desk, we wouldn't have had a closure.

The thing I'm afraid of, looking at the commercial industry, and I heard some other comments about looking for reallocation, but what happens if you get through the year and the commercial side, the way the fishery are caught, is you have about from late April to about the end of June commercially, where it's massively done or whatever other catch phrases people want to use, but here it is. It's not throughout the year.

Even if you were to have 400,000 or 300,000 at the end of June, the fishery would have never been closed down. I looked at the recreational numbers throughout the years, and there ain't no way you're going to catch fourteen-million pounds. I don't believe they ever caught ten-million pounds, but that's just looking at the OY and what it's set at there, but please be very careful in adding some flexibility from the commercial side when it comes to harvesting the mahi, and it is a historical recreational fishery. We're not looking to gain allocation, more fish, but I would see no problem in reaching out to say, hey, if we might need 100,000 pounds to get us through a couple more months, what the heck is wrong with that?

In the commercial side of it, you've got two aspects of looking at it. Yes, it is for profit, but we are giving access of this resource to people who don't have money for a boat or money to go charter fishing, and this resource is owned by all, not just a few, and so there's no reason for thinking that the commercial side is looking to gain an allocation shift, but I don't see nothing wrong with at the end of the year, or when you're in pinches, in having some flexibility to say, hey, look here, we need a few hundred-thousand-pounds to get through the year.

A lot of people brought up some questions, and some of them I've got a few problems with, but that's nothing different for me, but I just -- To be able to look forward and so that the commercial side of it, who has the smallest piece of the pie, can get through its year and give access to the fish.

When you look at the pelagic longline industry, there's probably about less than sixty or seventy active vessels, from Maine to Texas, left. If you could walk on mahi tomorrow, you wouldn't be having the total commercial fleet go fishing, because all the recreational industry would probably be catching the mahi too and be selling them. Therefore, the marketplace would be depressed and people couldn't go fishing for a dollar or two-dollar-a-pound mahi. That's just kind of a bigger overlook picture.

Our share of effort is decreasing up and down the coast, with different amendments and different things happening, and so please be flexible when it come to the commercial side and thinking. Don't place us in a box and say, well, we've got to look at this later, because management takes time. It's not very flexible. Thank you.

MS. BECKWITH: Just for folks that aren't completely aware of all the permits that the HMS longliners have to have, some of their permits are limited entry. They require -- Tuna longline, swordfish directed, swordfish incidental, swordfish hand gear, shark directed, and shark incidental are all limited entry. To use pelagic longlines, a permit holder must hold three permits: tuna longline, swordfish directed or incidental, and a shark directed or incidental. They call that the triple-pack, and so the HMS longliners are under quite a bit of restrictions.

MR. BREWER: To Ben's point, yes, HMS, the pelagic longline, quote, blue water boats, are very restricted. The fear that I think that we have had, and what we've seen, is what Terry Beideman calls council boats. Those are boats that are not HMS, and what we saw happening last year, and what we believe shut the fishery down, were, quote, council boats that were going out and not targeting swords or tunas, but targeting dolphinfish, and starting to bring in 30,000 and 40,000-pound trips.

I don't know that that's true, but that's the information that we got, and so I think Ben is very justified in saying that at least we should explore separating out the gear types, so that the hook and line guys, the vertical gear guys, don't have happen to them again what happened last year, because even in the Mid-Atlantic, your folks up there who vertical line stuff, they didn't really get a chance at the fishery for more than maybe a month or so, and it galled me.

I was really pretty upset about it, because these are the guys that are supplying to the local markets, that are supplying to the local restaurants, and those fish that they are supplying are fresh-caught fish, fresh-caught product, which commands, and I know Jack agrees with this, which commands a premium. I think that those folks need to be protected, and so I do think that there would be real value in just taking a look at separating the gear types.

MS. BECKWITH: I think, just to remind folks, our purpose here is to figure out a way of keeping the commercial guys open and not having the season close down, and so it's just a matter of going through these options and seeing which ones might make the most sense for the way that we might want to see this fishery be prosecuted in the future, but I think the intent is clear. Our intention is to keep these guys working.

MR. HEMILRIGHT: I tend to focus, a lot of times, my thoughts on what I know and not the hypothetical, and you have the State of Florida, the State of Georgia, South Carolina, and North Carolina here. You could easily go there and request data from each state to show these phantom fisheries you're discussing or council boats. I would probably -- I don't believe there is boats landing 30,000 or 40,000-pounds, as your espousing to, that are not documented commercial vessels.

Yes, there is a loophole that's in there that you don't have to have the tri-pack to go mahi fishing, but the percentage that you're discussing, I believe it's phantom. I believe it's minute, and you could easily request from each state, and maybe you've already put the request in to each state, to provide you with that data, and it would be interesting and educational for us sitting around the table to see that, and so I'm hoping that's the case.

MS. BECKWITH: I will go to you guys in a second, but when we start to develop the next amendment, one of the requests that we had made in a previous meeting was summaries of the temporal and spatial landings histories for dolphin across the entire Atlantic Coast. We had also

requested a breakdown of that temporal and spatial landings history for folks that had just dolphin wahoo permits and those that had the tri-pack and the dolphin wahoo permit, because we don't have a really great understanding of what our fishery is looking like right now, and so all that information, hopefully, will come through the development of the amendment, and that will help us make some choices, because I think you're right. We don't know how many landings are coming from folks that just are holding the dolphin wahoo permits and are longlining.

MR. BREWER: I did request that information, and I was told that it was proprietary, in certain instances, and we could only get averages, and so we're dealing with the averages, but we do know there were some trips that were tens-of-thousands of pounds, and we do know that -- I should say, and it's claimed, and I've talked to several blue water boat owners and operators, and they said that their average for like a ten-day or two-week trip pretty well remained under 600-pounds or 700-pounds.

They were saying it was not us. It was not us that had this huge spike, and so we are left with the assumption, and it is not 100 percent rock solid, but that those were, as have been described, council boats. Therein lies the fear that you're going to have these folks that are operating within the loophole, as you've described it, who are shutting down the hook and line vertical guys for over half the year, because, regardless of the source of the problem, that happened last year, and the economic impact, I believe, of that happening to the vertical hook and line guys was very, very, very negative, and it was very -- It was a big impact.

MS. BECKWITH: All right, folks. Tick-tock. We have an hour-and-fifteen minutes left.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I will pass.

MR. COX: I mean it's interesting, and it's great to have Dewey here for this conversation, because I think some of the Dare County boats were thirty-five or forty-foot boats that were fishing on the -- They were longline fishing for the tilefish and lost their fishery to some unreliable data and they've tried to fill that void with some mahi fish. The boats that I've seen unload have been catching a thousand to a couple of thousand pounds every three to four days of the mahi, but I don't think -- It's not been a whole lot of boats, has it, Dewey, that do that up there? I know we don't have any just below them that are targeting the fish that way.

MR. BOWEN: Chester mentioned the word "loophole", and Madam Chair, did you say that we didn't have a good grasp of what our longline boats were doing versus the hook and line in the commercial sector for the mahi?

MS. BECKWITH: Right, and our dolphin wahoo permits, we don't ask them to define a gear. It's just a dolphin wahoo commercial permit, and so we have landings -- The table is there. We have a breakdown of all longline catches and hook and line catches, but we don't have the longline catches separated out by those that just hold the dolphin wahoo permit or those that hold the tripack and the dolphin wahoo permit, and Brian can answer that better.

DR. CHEUVRONT: Just to follow up with what Anna was just saying, it's not impossible to do that. It's just that it requires going through landings, because what we have to do then is take those who have HMS permits and figure out the landings by the HMS permit guys, and then separate

those out from the other guys who don't have HMS permits. That's a very, very time consuming process.

We do actually have a table in here, and this is Table 1 that's in that white paper, that shows you - It's really small print here. If you want to pull it it up in your briefing book, it's Attachment 2, and it shows you the landings by month by the different gear types. Then there's another document in there, and I think it's -- Let me find it here. It's Attachment 4. That shows you the differences by gear and what the landings were by year, and this includes through 2015.

Remember what happened was is that when the fishery was shut down, I believe around June 30 of last year, typically that's the end of the longline fishery, and the hook and line fishery would then go throughout the year. While the longline landings, which you see there, is probably about pretty close to what the longline landings would have been, had the fishery stayed open, the hook and line landings would have increased throughout the year.

In doing the Regulatory Amendment 1 that you did put into place, it put into place a 4,000-pound trip limit once 75 percent of the commercial ACL had been reached. That was done as a way, effectively, to make sure that there would be enough fish left, and if you needed to shut down these large trips, you could go ahead and do that.

What was interesting is that I went back and looked at the number of trips, historically, that would have been affected had this 4,000-pound trip limit gone into place when 75 percent of the ACL had been reached. I've forgotten, but I think it was maybe over the course of five years, and I think there was one or two trips that would have been affected.

What you did with Regulatory Amendment 1 has helped to, I would think, suppress the possibility of the longline fishery busting the commercial ACL and not having a hook and line fishery for the rest of the year. That was basically the purpose of why you did what you did in Regulatory Amendment 1. Then you also got the added boost of another almost 400,000 pounds when the allocation between the two sectors was permanently changed.

You've got two things that have happened in the last year that have probably decreased the probability of what happened last year from happening again. I could never say that it will never happen again, but, if you had a year like last year, simply having the increase in the commercial ACL last year, the fishery never would have probably closed.

MR. BOWEN: Can I follow-up, Madam Chair?

MS. BECKWITH: Really quick, and then I'm going to go to Mel, Chris, Ben, and then we are moving on to the next topic.

MR. BOWEN: I just never got to my point is all.

MS. BECKWITH: Well, that is a problem, isn't it?

MR. BOWEN: Yes, ma'am. To Brian's point there, one thing I think we did too is we -- I think we hurt the full-time fishermen and helped the part-time fishermen with that trip limit, but that's just my opinion, but correct me if I'm wrong. We did establish a control date for June 30, and

that's in place now, I believe, but we did not establish a limited entry for that permit. We just established a control date, correct?

MS. BECKWITH: Right, and the limited entry is not being taken into consideration in Amendment 10. If we wanted to move forward with that, we would potentially move forward in Amendment 11, and, if we can get through these topics and have any time left, then I would start to discuss some of those larger topics.

MR. BELL: I just wanted to clarify something when Chester was talking about the pelagic longline versus the vertical and the vertical hook and line guys being hurt. That's the legitimate commercial hook and line sold, that part of it, right? That's what you meant?

MR. BREWER: Yes.

MR. CONKLIN: I just wanted to point out that in 2014 the recreational anglers only landed 37 percent of their ACL, which is around 5,227,000 pounds. The problem I see with this fishery, and if you really want to fix it, is you need to allocate more fish to the commercial side. If you are scared to do it through a soft allocation, then we need to go ahead and put more fish in the marketplace. That's just my point of view.

MS. BECKWITH: Thanks for that, Chris. I also want to point out that our 2015 numbers look like we increased by two-million pounds, and so we're up to 7.1-million, which means the recreational are maybe coming back to some of their ACL, and so there you have it.

MR. CONKLIN: Glad you sharpened your hooks.

MR. HARTIG: Dewey, my concern comes from the fact that the longline fishery in 2014 doubled its catch, and then it doubled again in 2015 from 2014, from the average catches in the previous time series. That's where our concern is coming from. Dolphin is worth money now, as you well now, and that's one of the drivers of why the longline fishery is catching more dolphin, because they're worth twice what they were four or five years ago, and so that's a big driver, when you can get four-dollars-plus a pound for dolphin.

Our concern is that we need to have some kind of insurance that we can try and fish the whole year. The fishing power between you guys and us is probably a hundred times, and so we're concerned about that fishing power in that fishery at that time of the year.

MS. BECKWITH: Dewey, because I love you, I'm going to let you have the last word, but we are moving on to the next topic.

MR. HEMILRIGHT: I totally agree with that, but, as we're talking about these things we want, why not address the rogue boats that are not licensed and get that information? It's kind of like a stepping-stone of building a house. Everybody is putting out their thoughts on what you want the roof to look like and you haven't even got the foundation to the question, because a lot of these times, if we go find these answers -- That one about the boats and the council boats or whatever, you can find that information. You can word it so it can weed itself out and we can see what it is and to the magnitude of what they caught. That should not be a problem. If it is, we've got a lot of other problems with management, but that's the reason why I guess I'm bringing it up, because

we're asking the different things and we haven't even answered the questions or found the answer to the questions that are out there that shows you to build another fishery.

Do you want a regulated longline fishery catching mahi, or do you want one that's not regulated and a loophole fishery being able to fish too? This council has a couple of things to answer, since they manage the mahi. One is look at the council boats that we've learned of and do we want the fishery to be regulated and boats that are regulated in limited access? There's a lot of questions to be answered before we get to what everybody wants about sector separation or sector gear types, in my opinion.

MS. BECKWITH: Thanks, Dewey, and I wouldn't call them rogue boats, because they do have council permits. They do have a dolphin and wahoo, but they simply don't have the circle hook regulations and some of the other regulations that the tri-pack has, but I wouldn't call them rogue boats.

The next topic is we hear from Ben and a couple of others that there is some interest in still considering potential gear separation. Now, let's look at the next one, considering permanent or temporary allocation shifts between the commercial and recreational sectors. One example of the temporary allocations is, if you guys have access to your briefing book, if you look on Amendment 26 under the king mackerel, PDF page 28, and that is their Action 8, Alternative 4. That's in the decision document for 26, but that shows an example of what those temporary allocations would look like.

Again, let me repeat that. One option for a temporary allocation that we might consider could be found in the CMP Decision Document 26 on PDF page 28. That's under Action 8, Alternative 4. The Gulf Council is considering temporary allocation shifts that go in -- For them, right now, they're just considering it from recreational to commercial, but it is simply set up in the format that 5, 10, or some percentage would be shifted temporarily until the recreational ACL meets a certain percentage.

That is an option for this council to consider. It's one that Michelle alluded to earlier, and so if you guys have any comments or discussion or any interest in looking at that as an option, spit it out. Brian has got it up on the screen now for consideration.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I guess I don't really understand how this would work, and the reason that I say that is because the recreational data is coming in in two-month waves, and so if we hit a situation like we had this past year -- I guess I just don't understand how we're going to really transfer the quota from the recreational over to the commercial, because of the data lag and because, at least in some fisheries and not necessarily dolphin or yellowtail, but in some fisheries you would have an issue, where you wouldn't know until after the year is over how close you were to the quota on the recreational side.

If you had a situation like last year, where you're in the height of the season and the fishery is closed, I just am unsure how we're going to assess where we are relative to the recreational quota, since we're talking about two-month waves, and what the lag would be in transferring from recreational to commercial.

MS. BECKWITH: Right, and the way I see this, Jessica, is we would use this, possibly, if we wanted to, as a tool in the toolbox for situations like mahi that we have a significant amount of recreational ACL typically unused, and it would be an automatic shift over. Then, you see the second part of that Action 4, it would revert back to status quo once the recreational sector reached a certain percent of its ACL.

If we went through the season and so our dolphin ACL hit 50 percent. If next year, we hit 70 percent, then the following year maybe there wouldn't be a shift, and so it would an automatic shift until a certain percentage of our recreational ACL was met, and then that would automatically -- Whatever the share was would automatically shift back to the recreational ACL, and vice versa, potentially.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I guess I still don't understand. So we would be relying on the Southeast Fisheries Science Center to say, okay, the commercial has hit the ACL and that -- Then Dr. Crabtree is going to automatically transfer over some quota in percentage chunks? How is this going to work?

MS. BECKWITH: Probably, and Leann can probably speak to what you guys were intending with this, but my understanding of it would be it's a conditional transfer, but it's done automatically at the beginning of the fishing year, and so it would transfer automatically, but the conditional part of it is that if the recreational ACL achieved a certain percentage, then that transfer would no longer occur. It would be an automatic transfer until we reached some portion of the recreational ACL, and then that transfer would no longer occur.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Maybe I am missing something again, but it just seems like -- Say you're transferring in these chunks over the course of five years or ten years or fifteen years. Then all of a sudden we hit whatever that recreational threshold is and then it reverts back, straight from commercial over to recreational, and it just seems like we're possibly violating a National Standard, because that's going to be pretty disruptive to that commercial fishery that's been fishing that quota for however many years that was in place. You've got people investing capital, et cetera, and what am I missing?

MS. BECKWITH: That's a great point, and that's why we're having this discussion, to see if it's something the council would be interested in pursuing.

MS. BOSARGE: This was actually an alternative that I threw out there as a possibility, and it would be something, like Anna said, where, okay, you come up with your percentages here. Say you go with a 15 percent transfer, 15 percent of the, in this case, recreational ACL would get transferred to commercial, one time, at the beginning of the year. When it's set, you set your ACLs and then you do your loan program and the commercial is going to borrow 15 percent from the recreational

Then you have a second threshold built into it that we're doing this because there's a bunch of fish left in the water on this side and, if we went this way, it would be saying that we think that the best way to manage the fishery is to let those fish be caught by somebody, but we don't want to push it up to the limit and end up in a spot where we put the recreational sector in a position where maybe they're facing closures, or whatever the case may be.

Your second threshold is you only do this loan, this borrowing, this loan program, up until the point that, in this case, the recreational sector hits -- 80 percent was what was thrown out at our last meeting as a possibility of its quota. At that point, if they get to that point, that means they're fishing those fish again. For whatever reason, maybe they weren't in the past, but they are now and so all bets are off.

The whole point was so that -- Because we put on our boxing gloves in the Gulf and we go at it over these allocations. I mean we just let it fly, and we spend so much of our time on allocation decisions that could be better spent on other things, really proactively managing our fisheries, and so this was a situation where, if you look at the pure data, you probably have the justification and the rationale to do a hardship from recreational to commercial, but why spin our wheels on that for years and years if we could do some kind of loan program that will keep that hard allocation what it is, to safeguard whatever sector, in this case the recreational sector, from losing it in the future if they want it. Up until that time, where they're actively fishing it, let somebody else use it, but not have to spin our wheels on these bloody allocation decisions.

MS. BECKWITH: Jessica brings a good point that if it's used for ten-years, then is there some concern about investment in the industry and what chaos can that bring in the future?

DR. CRABTREE: Jessica is right that there are a lot of logistic issues that would have to be worked out, but, at least the way I'm thinking this would work, it would be -- You set some threshold, and, as long as the recreational catches are below that, then the transfer occurs, but that would be based on the recreational catches in the previous year being projected to be below it, because we wouldn't even have the finalized data, but most of the recreational catches are in the summertime and so we're probably not going to get that far off.

Then you would, early the next year, make the transfer over, and you might be able to wait until the spring, because most of the commercial fishery is in the summer. I don't believe we have an in-season closure for the recreational fishery for dolphin, and so I think, if they hit the ACL, it would be a closure in the following year, but then you would pull back the transfer if that happened and maybe that avoids the need for a closure. It depends on how much you transferred and all that.

I think you could work it out, but the key would be setting the threshold low enough so that if the catches did bounce up that you're not going to end up in a closure situation, or at least the odds of it happening are something you're comfortable with, and so I think you could do it, but it's not like we're going to be tracking the recreational catches real-time during the year and making those decisions. It would have to be based on what we saw in the previous year.

DR. DUVAL: I mean this is a little bit like what is done for bluefish in the Mid-Atlantic, and so the commercial sector is allocated 17 percent of the total allowable landings. If that is less than ten-and-a-half-million pounds and the recreational sector is not projected to meet its own harvest allocation, then a portion of the recreational sector allocation may be transferred to the commercial, up to ten-and-a-half-million pounds, so that it would take the overall commercial sector up to that 10.5-million pounds. It can't go above that, and that's something that's been happening for a good long while, although I think just this past year, because of the bluefish stock assessment, I believe that the transfer amount for the 2016 fishing year was not as high as it had been previously.

That's another example of -- The Mid-Atlantic Council does this through their annual specification setting process, and Dewey can probably speak to that more if you want to find out about it, but I believe that's at the August council meeting every year.

MS. BECKWITH: Chris, and then we're going to move on to the next idea for discussion.

MR. CONKLIN: If we're still burning up this commercial quota and we wanted to end any additional investment on behalf of the commercial fishermen or anything, we need to go ahead and close up the fishery and not have open access permits for this fishery. That way, we don't have to worry about people investing a ton of money and new entrants, if there's 15 percent more or 5 percent to catch, if somebody doesn't go and buy and boat and go into the mahi catching business just based on that and they think they can do that for a long, long time. If they did, they certainly would be on their own in that, and so that's just all I was saying, is we have this problem in the fishery, but we still aren't limiting the access to the commercial side of the fishery. If we're, like I said, not going to change any allocation or anything, we need to try and limit the participation.

MS. BECKWITH: Point taken, Chris. The next idea is to establish a common pool allocation or a reserve category allocation. A common pool would be, of course, taking a certain percentage from either the recreational and/or commercial and just making it available to either sector. If one sector surpassed their ACL, then there would be that common pool that could be accessed by either recreational or commercial, and that would be a safeguard to not having an overage in either sector.

A reserve category allocation, my understanding would be, is you could roll over some of your unused allocation from one year to the next and have that in a reserve category. If say the commercial guys have 1.5-million next year, and they only use 1.3-million pounds of it, then some percentage of that would be able to roll over into a reserve category that they could utilize in the future, in case they surpass their ACL. Thoughts?

MR. BOWEN: As you were speaking and you said -- I didn't write it down and so I'm not quoting you and I am going to paraphrase, but you said if either sector were to go over their allocation -- When is the commercial -- I mean this is for discussion, but when has the commercial guys went over their allocation? They're accountable.

The problem lies from the recreational fleet, the for-hire fleet, not having any accountability and us going over. The way the trip tickets are now with the commercial guys, and maybe Dr. McGovern can answer the question, but I don't know of a fishery in the commercial sector that has went over lately. Is there one, Dr. McGovern, that you know of, or maybe Dr. Crabtree?

DR. CRABTREE: What was the exact question again?

MR. BOWEN: When has there been a commercial overage for the ACL for the commercial sector?

DR. CRABTREE: You're talking about dolphin?

Joint Dolphin Wahoo and Snapper Grouper Committees March 7, 2016 Jekyll Island, GA

MR. BOWEN: I'm talking about any species. My point was Anna -- Don't shake your head at me, Anna, yet. It's early. It's only Monday. My point was Anna said when there is an overage for either sector, commercial or recreational.

MS. BECKWITH: It would be a safeguard for an overage for either sector if we created a common pool.

MR. BOWEN: So my question arrived then of when has there been, or when was the last time there was an overage from the commercial sector for the ACL, or their ACL?

DR. CRABTREE: But you're not talking just dolphin and you're talking more generally?

MR. BOWEN: Yes, sir, more generally.

DR. CRABTREE: You can look on our website for previous years and you can see what was caught versus the ACL. We've had overages for quite a few species, and so it happens. One thing you ought to bear in mind here though is that the commercial fishery caught its ACL and it was closed, but we've come nowhere close to catching the overall ABC of the fishery.

There probably are simpler ways to get at this. The one that pops in my mind is just have a single ACL and recreational and commercial and everybody fishes for it and nobody shuts down unless the whole ACL is caught or an ACT is caught. Now, that probably has a downside as well. It seems, to me, you might be able to link whether you have any in-season closure for anybody on the performance of the fishery in the previous year, so that if the catches remain at 60 percent of the overall ABC in the previous year, there is no in-season closure for anybody.

From a biological point of view, even though the commercial fishery may have gone over their ACL last year, we were way below the overall ABC for the fishery, and so it's not like we're doing any damage to the stock if the ABC is what we think it is and reflects what's going on. There is, I think, a lot of creative ways you can look at how the accountability measures operate, and you have a lot of flexibility here, because the catches are remaining so far below the overall ABC. I think as long as they remain well below the ABC that you probably have a lot of flexibility in how you manage the fishery.

MS. BECKWITH: Jessica, and then, if I'm hearing Roy right, he is suggesting another direction this committee may take to consider, and that would be the accountability measure, instead of soft or hard allocations. Let's keep that in mind and keep the conversation interesting.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I guess I would say if we're going to move forward with some type of white paper that I would like to see us look at a single ACL for yellowtail and dolphin.

MS. BECKWITH: Is that in the form of a motion?

MS. MCCAWLEY: Yes, Madam Chair, it is.

MS. BECKWITH: Do I have a second? Charlie seconds.

MR. HAYMANS: To the motion, I just look at that single ACL as opening the door to enlarging the fleet that's already out there, and especially just -- I shudder at the thought of a single ACL, but I do have another point when we finish with the motion.

MS. BECKWITH: Yes, and the single ACL scares me a bit in an open-access, permitted commercial fishery, and so I too shudder at a single ACL for dolphin.

MR. PHILLIPS: To that point, I mean we're going to -- We basically have soft TACs, and we're going to set regulations shooting for those soft TACs. We've heard fishermen ask for flexibility ever since I can remember, and this is one of the ways to do it, and I like Roy's thoughts.

MS. BECKWITH: We have four other ideas presented in this white paper that also offer ideas to offer flexibility without having one single ACL.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I would like to say that I'm not considering this as the only option all by itself. I would like to see this in conjunction with other options, because, like you said, I also have concerns of us just looking at this all by itself. I would like to see this in conjunction with some other options. I was thinking that at the end of this white paper that we were going to make a list of all the different items we were going to look at, and so I just wanted to clarify.

MS. BECKWITH: Thank you, Jessica.

MR. BOWEN: I have the same sentiment as you and Doug, believe it or not. It scares me. It worries me to death, and I mean if we're looking at dolphin wahoo, we might as well look at --

MS. BECKWITH: This is the Dolphin Wahoo -- No, this is the Snapper Grouper as well. Darn it. Go ahead.

MR. BOWEN: Yes, it's joint, you know the one you're Chair of. We could look at vermilion snapper as well, and that's just a for-instance. My point is that it worries me with the single ACL.

MS. BECKWITH: That will be added to the list to go out to scoping.

MR. HARTIG: You've got a motion on the table.

MS. BECKWITH: Sorry. We haven't voted on it. All in favor of this motion, raise your hand, five; all opposed, four. The motion passes five to four.

Then that will be included in the white paper or whatever goes out to scoping. Now let's talk about some of these other options that we want to see go out to scoping. What of these which we have discussed would folks like to see go out to scoping for consideration? Ben, do you want to pick your favorite out there and send it to scoping, or multiple favorites?

MR. HARTIG: Absolutely. Do you want a motion to add the gear allocation separation? Is that what you're asking for?

MS. BECKWITH: Whatever you guys want to see go out to scoping from this white paper, please let us know.

MR. HARTIG: I would like to see the gear -- Zack has got me with the sector stuff.

MS. BECKWITH: Commercial gear section allocation for longline and hook and line.

MR. HARTIG: Thank you. That's it.

DR. CHEUVRONT: Are we making a motion or are you just giving direction to staff here?

MS. BECKWITH: Do you guys feel like we need to -- Do you want to do a motion? Okay, Jessica wants a motion. Ben, was that in the form of a motion?

MR. HARTIG: Yes.

MS. BECKWITH: Can I have a second? I am looking for a second to Ben's motion to consider to send out to scoping the concept of a commercial gear sector allocation for longline and hook and line. Zack seconds. It was seconded. The motion is: Consider for scoping gear sector allocations for the commercial fishery for dolphin.

DR. DUVAL: Again, I am getting -- I would just be repeating what I said before, and so I think, at some point, we need to have a discussion of timing on this amendment versus I think there were some of us around the table who were interested, at least on the dolphin side of things, of the larger comprehensive Amendment 11 and where that would play in, because, in looking at the previous white paper for that amendment and the ideas that have been thrown out, gear sector allocations was in there as well.

MS. BECKWITH: Right, and it may be that if the committee would prefer to have a larger discussion on what we don't have time for today, because I've got forty-minutes left on my clock and a whole lot of things to talk about, we may be able to decide, out of this white paper, what we would want to send to scoping and wait until the next meeting and have a larger discussion on some of the other issues we don't get to today and send those out for scoping as well together, since it's just scoping. I don't know that we're in a huge hurry for action on any of these. I think they're big enough issues that we maybe really need to think them through.

DR. CHEUVRONT: If you're going to have two separate scopings --

MS. BECKWITH: No, I would consider -- I would ask the committee if they would like to hold off. We can figure out what we want to send to scoping, but we can hold off sending it to scoping until we have a discussion on all of our topics.

DR. CHEUVRONT: That's what I would recommend you do if you can't get through it today and you decide that would fit what your plan would be. I thought you were suggesting that whatever you choose today goes to scoping before June and then whatever you choose in June goes to scoping again, and that's not very efficient.

MS. BECKWITH: I don't think that would be productive.

MR. BREWER: A friendly amendment, if Ben might consider it, would be to change the word "gear sector" to "gear type" separation.

DR. CHEUVRONT: Gear type separation or gear type allocation?

MR. BREWER: I meant to say "gear type allocation".

MR. HAYMANS: To clarify your last comment, both 10 and 11 issues together for public scoping?

MS. BECKWITH: I am sort of envisioning -- We have a lot of things we haven't gotten to. We haven't gotten to talking about limited entry and we haven't talked about bag limit sales and we haven't talked about circle hooks. We haven't talked about the change in fishing year that was suggested by some of our public comment.

DR. CHEUVRONT: Those were Amendment 11 items.

MS. BECKWITH: Right, and I agree those are potentially Amendment 11 items, but I still think that some of the discussions that come out of those Amendment 11 items may impact some of the direction that we take on some of these Amendment 10 actions. If I'm not correct on that or someone views that differently, please speak up, but I think all of this is sort of -- If we go to limited entry, we may choose one thing. If we go to limited entry for the charter industry, we may choose different choices. I think it sort of behooves us to have at least a short conversation on all the topics before we start to ratchet down.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I agree with that. Are you suggesting that that would occur this week or you're suggesting holding off on everything and having another discussion in June and then do scoping after that? I would be in favor of that.

MS. BECKWITH: Right, and I don't want to rehash whatever we talk about today. I don't want to talk about it again in June, but I want to pick out whatever it is that we want to see come out of scoping out of this discussion. Then, in June, we're going to have a whole separate list of things that we're going to talk about, and then, whatever we choose out of that, we'll send that whole suite out to scoping and then start ratcheting that stuff down. Does that make sense to everyone?

MR. HARTIG: Refresh my memory on Amendment 11.

MS. BECKWITH: Amendment 11 was potentially a discussion of limited entry for the commercial, circle hooks, potentially bag limit sales for the for-hire, potentially Zack would be bringing up limited entry for the for-hire, and -- Am I missing stuff? I think there was more stuff on a list that would potentially go into Amendment 11.

DR. CHEUVRONT: Ben, it's all the stuff that was in the white paper that you saw in December, plus I don't recall if bag limit sales was on that list or not. I don't think it was. I think it's an issue that's come up since then. Previously, remember your Dolphin Wahoo AP, for the last several years that they have met that I was helping coordinate that AP, has passed motions to allow for bag limit sales of dolphin. Madam Chair, I just wanted to point out a procedural sort of thing.

MS. BECKWITH: Ben, were you okay with that friendly amendment? Okay. Great. Thank you. Then we have two other things, two other ideas, that were set forth in this white paper. Is anyone interested in seeing either consideration of a permanent --

DR. CHEUVRONT: You need a vote here, Madam Chair. You've got a motion on the table. Let's deal with this one first or modify this motion.

MS. BECKWITH: Thank you. The motion on the table is to consider for scoping gear type allocations for the commercial fishery for dolphin. All those in favor of taking that out to scoping, please raise your hand, eight. The motion passes.

The other two ideas that were discussed was establishing a common pool allocation or a reserve category allocation or considering permanent or temporary allocation shifts between the commercial and recreational sector. Are either of those of any interest to folks?

MS. MCCAWLEY: I have a procedural question. Are we suggesting that we're going to scope the items for Amendment 10 and 11 at the same time, or is that going to become -- Are 10 and 11 going to become one amendment? I'm just a little confused about what's going to happen in June. Are we still keeping these items separated and one is a faster track than the other? I am just looking for some more information.

MS. BECKWITH: I guess, in my mind, the Amendment 10 and 11 issues are related, and so, to me, whatever we send out to scoping, whatever we get back, maybe we would shift into Amendment 10 and 11, but I am going to let our Chair and Brian speak to that. My intent is really that -- I think all of these issues are related, and I think sending them all out to scoping and getting feedback on a larger host of issues is probably more productive, if that is doable. If it's not, then we need to reassess.

DR. DUVAL: When we talked about this stuff in December, we initially talked about a whole suite of items related to the larger management of the dolphin fishery, and some of these allocation shifts were included in that, and we added for-hire sales as a consideration, because we also did not have sufficient time to discuss that at the December meeting, and that's why it's here for Other Business today, which I'm sincerely hoping that we'll get to that.

Based on direction that we got at full council, it was to -- People were interested in exploring options to have non-permanent, in-season allocation shifts for both yellowtail and dolphin, based on the issues that arose last year, and so the decision was that this allocation shift amendment took higher precedence than Amendment 10, which is now Amendment 11, because if we're going to do something like this temporary allocation shift amendment, that gets a different number. That gets Number 10 for Dolphin and whatever number we're on for Snapper Grouper.

Again, I think my intent would be that whatever is developed in this temporary allocation shift amendment really needs to be applicable to other species as well and not just dolphin and not just yellowtail snapper. I think whatever goes out for scoping should note that.

MS. BECKWITH: Then it's up to the committee. I mean if we want to send this entire suite out for scoping now, I mean we certainly can do that. We'll get feedback and then, as we discuss topics of limited entry and a host of other things in June, then -- That's certainly an option.

MS. MCCAWLEY: That was not my intent when I asked the question. My intent was just to figure out if Amendment 10 and Amendment 11 were going to be on different time scales and one was going to move faster than the other, which I think that Michelle explained.

DR. DUVAL: Just to add to that, I mean if you pull up the staff amendment slots Excel spreadsheet from the December council meeting that we reviewed at full council, and so it might be in the full council folder, the way that ended up was this temporary allocation shift amendment would basically be conducted in 2016, and then, in 2017, you would be looking at the large Dolphin Wahoo Amendment 10/11, whatever number it's going to end up being, for 2017.

MS. BECKWITH: Okay. I mean either way is fine by me. If you guys want to send -- Is there interest in sending all of these ideas out for scoping or just some? Is there some idea in here that somebody does not want to see go out for scoping, from what's been presented in this white paper, one idea that we know that we're not going to ever consider?

MR. HAYMANS: I care not at all for the common pool. I've been trying to get to that for a couple of minutes. That was my other point, but the common pool idea just, to me, seems like it's a permanent allocation shift from recreational to commercial, because, from Zack's point earlier, I mean there's only one fishery that -- Anyway, I don't care to send the common pool out.

While I've got the mic, I will go ahead and make my other points real quick. Ben had made a point earlier that, based on things that we've done previously, we may not see the 2014/2015 high longline landings again, which is why I thought we were looking at Amendment 10, was to try to keep that from happening, or at least allocate it. If there's a possibility that we're not going to see that in 2016, and I know that's a dice throw, I would just as soon combine these into one amendment.

I would like to see things comprehensively, and, like we've been talking about, see all the pieces at one time. I have always just had trouble with the way we go through actions and we see them at different times and we want to go back and change something. I would rather look at it comprehensively as one amendment.

MS. BECKWITH: Okay, and so I am hearing from Doug that he doesn't want to see the common pool allocation, but the reserve allocation is an option, because that would be coming from its own sector, reserving from its own sector, and so unused quota that could roll over into a reserve category.

MR. HAYMANS: When I read the reserve, I read it as those are two different names for the same thing, and I didn't see it being from individual sectors. I saw it pulling allocation from both sectors into a common pool, or a common reserve, and maybe I read that wrong.

MS. BECKWITH: One idea that I would like to see go to scoping would be the idea of what I would call a reserve allocation, which would be a set-aside of unused ACL from say the commercial that they would be able to tap into in a following year, as long as the overall ACL hasn't been met.

Let's say they use 1.4-million pounds and they have 100,000 pounds left over, that could go into the commercial reserve and they would be able to tap into that the following year, and so it would be unused commercial for the commercial.

MR. BREWER: You know how well rollover have worked with ICCAT and HMS. They don't, and it's a bad idea.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I think that what you were bringing up was is there anything that needs to be removed from this document before going to scoping. I was just going to go on record saying that I'm fine with everything else in this document going to scoping. If we want to pull out what Doug suggested, I'm okay with that too, but he also was suggesting that this get combined into one amendment.

I would like to make that decision at the June meeting, after we have the broader discussion of everything. I would rather not make the combine decision right now. I would like to leave that on the table for June. I am not suggesting scope this stuff and then come back in June, but I'm suggesting we talk about everything for scoping as well as determining if it becomes one amendment or it stays two amendments, with one moving faster than the other -- I would like to have those discussions at the June meeting.

MR. HEMILRIGHT: As far rollover, I think in ICCAT, which doesn't manage the dolphin fishery, they have rollovers of up to 15 percent, whether it be swordfish or other species. I wouldn't see anything wrong with this council that manages dolphin being able to have a rollover, given that there's quota left over and that the stock is not overfished and overfishing is occurring.

Something else is the previous -- I'm not sure exactly what amendment it is, the one that was at the public comment about setting the catch limit at when 75 percent of the fish is caught that it reverts back to 4,000-pound trip limit, but it seems like this want that everybody is asking up here for these motions is you already have something that's going to go in place, possibly, and so how about you wait and see what's happening there, before you keep on adding other amendments in place, to see how the fishery is going to play out? I believe it's in the purview of this council to do rollovers, and they're the ones that manage the fishery, and so I wouldn't worry about what ICCAT thinks about the dolphin fishery here on the Western Atlantic.

MS. BECKWITH: Thanks for that, Dewey. The 4,000-pounds at 75 percent, yes, we definitely put that in place to make sure that it didn't close, but we went clearly on the record saying we would take into consideration other additional actions that would assure prevention of that, and that 4,000-pound limit was also not completely well received by the Northeast area, and so we're just sort of thinking ahead, but thank you for those comments.

I agree with Dewey. I am okay with scoping a rollover reserve concept, rather than the common pool or reserve allocation, and so, if it's okay with the committee, then I would like to add that in lieu of the common pool allocation. We could do a rollover reserve concept, and then I don't know how other people feel, but I would like to see scoped the temporary allocation shifts, using the Gulf Council's example, but I am not interested in scoping a permanent allocation shift at the moment, and so I would, personally, like to not include that for scoping, but I'm open for comments.

MR. COX: I mean I would like to see it stay in there, just to see what folks thought about it. I mean we can certainly vote on it right here and decide whether we want to keep it in or take it out, but it makes sense to me to keep it in.

MR. PHILLIPS: I still would like to hear what people say about a common pool or a common ACL, and it may work for one species, like yellowtail, and it may not work for something else, but scoping is scoping.

MR. HAYMANS: I was just going to add when I was thinking about that whole concept of temporary transfer -- I thought about it from a larger species standpoint, and I would like to see us, if it goes to public comment or public scoping, to talk about what percentage of -- I've got to back up and get my thought right.

For instance, in the dolphin fishery, we would only do it if the recreational side had met 60 percent or less, and then we heard Leann talk about the 5 or 10 percent increments, but, for those fisheries which are at 80 percent or better, it would not be under discussion, and I think that needs to be part of the scoping document, and I don't know whether we need to set those percentages or not.

DR. CHEUVRONT: You can set those percentages if you want to, but I think there's enough direction that if you want to keep this in there that it would follow pretty closely to what Leann had put in for CMP. When we take it out to scoping, people might make suggestions at that time to adjust those numbers, and that's fine. That would all come back to you later and you can adjust those numbers, as appropriate, for whatever species.

I think one of the things that you will want to discuss is it's pretty clear that you want these things to go out for dolphin, but what -- Right now, the other species that we're considering is yellowtail, but do you want to scope snapper grouper species in general or -- I would like to get some discussion on that as well, if that's appropriate to you all. If it's not, then just say so and we'll just leave it at yellowtail right now, but some of these concepts seem pretty generic.

MS. BECKWITH: Right, and I would make note that, as we write the temporary allocation shift concept in the scoping paper, to make sure it's written in a fashion that can go in either direction, just because.

MS. MCCAWLEY: The temporary allocation, are we only looking at the option like what's in mackerel, or are we going to have the ability to look at an option that's more like bluefish? Can we look at both of those?

DR. DUVAL: I don't see why we couldn't. I mean the language is pretty clear. I think we pulled it before when we were considering this for Spanish mackerel, like two years ago, as an example of a temporary allocation shift. I would certainly advocate for including language in whatever goes out to scoping, as I said earlier, that this be general in nature. It would be the council's intent that if there's a desire to use this tool, this type of tool, for other species that it would be available and it would not just be for these two species here.

MS. BECKWITH: I agree with that.

MR. HARTIG: Madam Chairman, I need to take this opportunity to correct something I said earlier. When I was speaking to Dewey, I said a hundred times more efficient. That is clearly wrong. It's more like ten-plus, longline versus hook and line, and so I would like to put that back on the record and correct my mistake.

MS. BECKWITH: Noted. Okay, and so I think we've got the list of what we're looking to go for scoping, in general, for yellowtail and dolphin, and with verbiage that indicates that this tool that may choose to utilize would be used for additional species. I think the last thing that's up for grabs is do we send this out to scoping now or are we waiting until after the discussion in June? Let's do a strawman. Let's make it easier. Who would like to see this sent out to scoping now? Raise your hand.

DR. CHEUVRONT: Is this a motion?

MS. BECKWITH: No, this is a strawman. Who would like to see the greater discussion, another discussion, happen in June and then decide the larger package to go out to scoping? Okay. The committee has spoken, and Michelle looks perplexed.

DR. DUVAL: I will just say that we'll have another discussion about this during Executive Finance, when you look at the spreadsheet that indicates that allocation, the temporary allocation shift amendment, was going to be this year's task, and next year's task was going to be Dolphin Amendment 11, looking at the larger-scale management issues within the fishery and what we want to change. I don't care, but just if we can settle on some certainty for a schedule, so that staff has some certainty about what they're going to be working on, that would be great, and so we'll be coming back to this at Executive Finance.

MS. BECKWITH: To Michelle's point, what we're sending out to scoping, even though it will impact dolphin and yellowtail, we keep saying that this is a tool that we're going to try and develop for a broader use across species, and so this could -- This is why I keep asking. This could be scoped on its own now and written in a way that it would impact dolphin and yellowtail, but would be developed as a tool for a broader suite of species, if the council deemed it appropriate.

While I think that some of the discussions we may have in June would impact what direction, which of these tools we might use for dolphin, it doesn't preclude these tools from being developed for a suite of species, and so we could send this out to scoping now, independent, and not have it specific for dolphin and yellowtail. Have those be examples, but be clear that these are a potential tool that we're developing for our toolbox. Given that, is there any change in desire to hold this for scoping? Do we still want to hold for scoping?

MR. HARTIG: My point is that how much additional do we put into 11, and then that's a time constraint in itself? If we're putting additional things to consider into 11, it's going to draw 11 out, to some degree, and then it gets to the point that I made when we were talking about slots and timeliness and how much can you put in an amendment and still be timely and still take pressure off of staff, like we said we were going to try and do?

DR. DUVAL: I am not advocating for lumping all this stuff together. I am just telling everybody the decisions that you all made in December, that, instead of lumping everything all together, that the decision that was made was that it was more important to try to develop this in-season

allocation shift tool and focus on questions that were more germane to coast-wide management of the dolphin fishery in 2017, that we had taken this temporary -- We had taken this action, through Regulatory Amendment 1, that was a placeholder for things in 2016.

We work on this allocation tool for 2016 and then come back to Dolphin Amendment 11 and some of those broader issues in 2017. I am not advocating one way or the other. I am just merely informing you all what you decided to do and where the slots are right now, so you can go to your Executive Finance tab and pull up the spreadsheet and take a look.

DR. CHEUVRONT: I just wanted to add to what Michelle said, because I agree with everything that she said, but if you all decide that the actions that you have taken right now already for the dolphin fishery you feel would be sufficient to keep that fishery from going over for the next few seasons, and you want to lump all these things together in one amendment, that can be done.

What had been considered was the fact of do you need to fast-track these allocation actions separate from the other dolphin things? If you do want to do that, then you ought to keep them separate. If the speed of action is not as important to you, it doesn't really matter.

I am basically the staff guy who is doing dolphin, and so if what happens is that you lump all these things together, it may take a longer time period to get through everything, and you won't get those allocation actions in place faster, but if that's not important to you and you want to consider all of these potential dolphin management things at the same time, then that's what you should do. If the speed of getting the allocation stuff is no longer important and you just want to -- If you think it's important to keep all those actions together, then that's what you should do.

MS. BECKWITH: I think that the dolphin timing is maybe less of a concern now that we have a stopgap in place, and it may be an overall consideration, but I don't want to speak to yellowtail snapper. I don't know how desperate of a situation yellowtail snapper is in, but I agree with the committee, and I think looking at the dolphin fishery as a whole and looking at all the different components is probably a worthwhile exercise.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I agree. I think that yellowtail might be a different situation from dolphin. Can we just continue this discussion at Executive Finance, so that we can get past this and move on to the other items?

MS. BECKWITH: Thank you, and yes. The item under Other Business was a discussion on the bag limit sales for the charter industry, which I am happy to have this discussion, but I also think that this discussion will curtail into logbooks and limited entry for the for-hire industry and all sorts of larger topics on how we want to see the dolphin fishery prosecuted, but I will turn it over to Brian to -- Or who wants to talk about the emails about the bag limit sales?

DR. DUVAL: I will take a stab. I received an email from Bob Jones. This was prior to the December council meeting. For folks who don't know Bob, he is the Executive Director of the Southeast Fisheries Association. He had passed along a resolution that was developed cooperatively.

The West Palm Beach Fishing Club hosted a meeting of commercial fishermen, charter boat fishermen, and other folks. I think Ben was in attendance at that meeting and Chester was in

attendance at that meeting, and so there's been discussion over the past couple of years, since bag limit sales for dolphin and mackerel were disallowed, and concern about the economic impact that that has on dually-permitted vessels, in other words those folks who hold both a charter/for-hire and commercial permit for both mackerel and dolphin species.

The Dolphin Wahoo Advisory Panel has, for several years, advocated allowing properly permitted vessels that have both commercial and for-hire permits to be allowed to sell the catch that has been caught on a for-hire trip, but only those vessels that hold those dual permits. Similarly, I believe for king mackerel, but that was the intent, that you would have to have both permits.

Mr. Jones had asked if we could discuss this. I told him that we would put it on the agenda for the December council meeting, but let him know that our agenda was extremely full, and so I think we brought it up at the Dolphin Wahoo Committee meeting in December, noting that we wanted to have a more robust discussion of this in March, at this meeting, and so I really don't have a problem if we go past our 5:00 P.M. time limit on this one, because I want to make sure that we have at least some discussion on this and what the council's intent might be.

I know Chester is going to have something to say, and I believe Dewey will probably have something to say about this. Dewey was a long-time member of the Dolphin Wahoo Advisory Panel, and this is one of the items that we tagged for inclusion in Dolphin Wahoo Amendment 11, and there are a number of items that would need to be considered in moving forward with any reconsideration of bag limit sales for those two species. Just for folks who were not around, bag limit sales of dolphin were prohibited with the passage of the Comprehensive Annual Catch Limit Amendment, and so that's been in place since April 16 of 2012.

MR. BREWER: Bob Jones and I don't agree on a lot of stuff, but you're right that I was at the meeting at the Fishing Club, and Ray Rouse was there and Bob Jones was there. There were representatives of the charter, pure recreational, commercial. This is primarily coming out of some guides down in the Keys, and they do, and they did, supply product to the restaurants in the Keys and they are not able to do that now if they are on a charter trip.

We're not talking about folks that don't know what they're doing. We're talking about professional guides who also hold commercial permits. Bob Jones is pushing this because he believes that -- Well, he is in favor of it as long as these guides are commercially permitted and they would be subjected to the same type of safety of handling of the fish, the product --

MS. MCCAWLEY: The HACCP standards.

MR. BREWER: Okay, but the same standards if the fish were caught commercially. I am usually -- Usually, I am not a proponent of recreational fish being sold, but my understanding of the way this would work is those fish would magically transfer from being recreationally caught to being commercial fish and would be counted against the commercial quota.

The reason that I am in favor of this is I truthfully believe that we should be doing whatever we can to help out -- Not everything, but everything within reason to help out professional guides. They provide the platform for recreational folks to go fishing and it's an additional method of access, and I'm all about access for the public to the resource. I am in favor of this. It's very strange, and I feel kind of weird saying that, but I am in favor of this.

MR. BOWEN: Chester, you stated on record that mainly these guys were the guys in the Keys that are wanting this. Is that correct?

MR. BREWER: I said that, but I may not be correct in that assumption. It is guys from the Keys that have been pushing it the hardest, and it may well be an issue for folks outside of the Keys.

MR. BOWEN: The reason I ask that is it's strange you say that, because the majority of the people in the Keys, the comments that we've had, are against electronic reporting, and so I don't see how they can be against electronic reporting for the charter boats, but yet want to be for-hire for selling their catch. I am not against it. That law was put in place for a reason. I think it's double-dipping. If they're going to carry recreational people out there to catch recreationally-caught fish and then sell them as commercial, you're taking away from the full-time commercial guys, as far as their allocation or their ACL. It's hard to count them and I'm not for it.

MR. BELL: Surprisingly enough, I don't really like this idea. I think one thing Chester just said, and that's why I had to say something, but I kind of deal with issues where I'm watching commercial guys that are holding on by their fingernails trying to stay -- I agree with supporting all the sectors and trying to keep them vibrant, but I look at this as the commercial guys only make a living one way. They catch the fish and they sell the fish and put them on the table. That's what they do.

The for-hire guys, they have a way of -- They have a different business model. They do things differently with the fish, and so, while in looking out for them, I think we also need to be sensitive to the fact that -- What perhaps dolphin or king or whatever it is represent is marketable product for the legitimate commercial sector.

Kind of switching it around or shifting some of it over to allow folks that really aren't part of that sector to have it, it just doesn't sit right with me, and it's, again, crossing that -- You know Magnuson established these sectors for some reason, and so that's one thing. The other is the way the folks that are sort of presenting this to us are teeing it up. It just doesn't sit right with me.

Maybe it's because, as Chair of the Law Enforcement Committee, when it's teed up as basically illegal things have been happening for decades and so let us keep doing it and just make it legal - That's sort of the way they set it up. I mean it could be set up differently, or teed up differently, perhaps, but that's kind of how it comes across, is we've been breaking the law, we're breaking the law, we're breaking law, and change the law so we're not breaking the law and don't change the -- That's just me with my law enforcement hat on. Another thing I would say is, in discussing this, we really need to have law enforcement involved in this from the very beginning. Thank you.

DR. DUVAL: My concerns are really about the accountability of the catch, and so how it would be recorded, because, right now, those are all fish going into commerce and it's going to count against the commercial annual catch limit, and so -- And possibly recreational. There is a concern of double-counting.

In my mind, the only way that something like this can work is if you do have a charter vessel logbook, where you can actually have a disposition code for those fish that knows whether or not they've been sold. I think the State of Florida, and Jessica can probably correct me if I'm wrong,

has space on your trip ticket where you can note the disposition of the fish, in other words, if they came from a for-hire trip.

We're in the process of a revamp of our commercial trip ticket database right now. I don't want to -- We can certainly account for those fish as that revamp goes forward. It's going to be difficult right now, but I think you're going to get double-counting on both sides, and that's what I am really concerned about, and I don't really know how to get around that. In full disclosure, Bob and I have had a very cordial conversation about this, and I have brought those concerns up as well. Thank you.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I just wanted to clarify something that Chester said. What Bob Jones said, and in the document that I think is A5, that has Jeanna Merrifield's signature line on it, they were wanting those fish to come from the recreational quota and not the commercial quota, but I share the same concerns that Michelle does, that these fish could end up being double counted. Yes, there is a disposition code on the Florida trip ticket, where they could indicate how those fish were disposed of, whether they were sold or not, but I just wanted to clarify that Chester had said Bob et al. wanted it from the commercial quota. No, they wanted it from the recreational quota.

DR. CRABTREE: You know when we eliminated this some years back, this was a big part of the discussion. It's not clear to me, if charter boats are selling fish to restaurants, how that's counted against the commercial quota, because I don't see who is filing a trip ticket or a dealer report. They are being counted though against the recreational quota, because they're part of the overall recreational survey.

Now, there may be ways to make adjustments and fix all of that, but it's going to take changes in how the fish are handled and how they're reported and how well any of that is going to work. I think you would have to look at it, and so I think that's something that we would need Bonnie to go back and talk to the guys in her shop who are tracking all these things and figure out, if we're going to do this, what kind of changes would we do, but, you know, when we did the ACL amendment, we had bag limit sales of snapper grouper going on too, and a big part of why we didn't allow that anymore was all of these complications and things.

DR. DUVAL: Then I think you should call on Dewey, but just to Roy's comment about if they're selling to a restaurant and those fish not being counted against the commercial quota, and, sure, if they're selling them illegally, but if a restaurant owner also has his dealer license, then that person is required to report that stuff on a trip ticket.

MR. HEMILRIGHT: For about eight or nine years, I was a member of the Dolphin Wahoo AP panel, and it was unanimous every time allowing for bag limit sale of charter-caught fish, predominantly from the guys in the lower Keys area, and I was always for it. I would venture to put a cap on it at 50,000 or 100,000 pounds, to say that because it wasn't the majority of the fisheries and how it works up and down the coast, and put a cap on it of 50,000 or 100,000 pounds. Take it out of the recreational industry or the quota of the for-hire sector, like that.

Also, make sure that they're properly licensed, commercially, and that they have to fill out logbooks and they have to document that fish that is entered into commerce. As different ones said, and I'm glad to hear that Chester is for giving access to all, and so it was great to hear that. It also works on the commercial side also, and so that was kind of good on him saying that. I was

putting the commercial side into the equation, but anything that can keep people fishing within the realm of our annual catch limits.

Put a cap on it of 50,000 or 100,000 pounds and see where we go and kind of work our way through this, and something else in some of the earlier motions that we had about what people wanted, there's something else this committee needs to look at, and it's to decide, on the commercial side, who do you want fishing for the dolphin? Do you want guys that pelagic longline that have the tri-pack, or do you want the open access that you're allowing to anybody that has a dolphin wahoo permit to go fishing?

Before you put up here everybody's discussion about all their wants, how about deciding on who you want in the fishery, go ask them questions. Don't put the cart before the horse, and so I would hopefully, when people are looking at the earlier motions here, would pull back a little bit and say, well, who do we want in this fishery and what permits are they going to have to have to go fishing, because the South Atlantic Council manages the dolphin wahoo. It's not some other entity, and so it's to you all to decide on who fishes, but I was for that charter selling their fish on a limited scale, on a cap, and I support it now, just because people -- I like to see them go fishing and provide some economic access, if they can, and times are tight and all of the above.

MR. PHILLIPS: I am concerned about how it's going to be reported and how they're going to shake it out. I'm also concerned about what kind of shift in effort we're going to get. I would expect a good bit of shift in effort and how that's going to play out, and that concerns me.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I would like to continue this discussion as part of this broader discussion at the next meeting to figure out what's going to get scoped, and so I was thinking that the discussion was just going to get started today and that it was going to get pulled into the discussion in June for all of the items that we're going to figure out what is going to be scoped. I just wanted to put that out there.

MS. BECKWITH: Because it's 5:03 and Jessica is ready. Who else needs to comment on this?

MR. COX: Some of the issues I have with it is -- As I read through this, some of these issues fall back on law enforcement not doing their job. I mean if there's back-door sales of illegal seafood and we're trying to rectify that here by allowing them to sell it, that's a law enforcement problem.

Another thing is, over the years that I have bought fish from the for-hire recreational sector, most of the time they have sold fish because they've caught more than they need or want to take home with them. Therefore, when they started out fishing that day, they didn't carry a sufficient amount of ice, and so we're talking about a histamine fish that can make people really sick. I have seen a lot of lesser-quality fish through those kinds of sales. As you allow more industry to sell their product, you're going to decrease the value to the commercial industry. I just have heartburn with this whole deal.

MR. HARTIG: I have changed on this. I was adamantly opposed against the bag limit sales, and we got rid of the general bag limit sales and the for-hire guys came out of the woodwork. I have been convinced that a number of business plans that people went into business on were made on what we had allowed them to do at the time.

One of them was the charter guy in king mackerel from the Cape, who told me that he was teeter-tottering between commercial and recreational, you know going into for-hire and going into commercial fishing, and he made his decision based on he could sell the bag limit of king mackerel on his for-hire trips, and that was enough to keep him satisfied in the mackerel fishery.

That took him out of commercial fishing and took him out of producing more fish in the market on a daily basis. It took him into a lower amount of fish to be able to sell per day, but it still allowed him to capitalize on that sale, and that was part of his business plan.

To Mel's point about law enforcement, these people were allowed to sell these fish until 2012, and so it's not a case of over the years that they've been breaking the law. They were allowed to sell those fish prior to the Comprehensive ACL Amendment. We talked about the Comprehensive ACL Amendment, and there was a lot in there. There was a heck of a lot of stuff in there, and, frankly, a lot of these people were not paying attention at the time and didn't comment on it. Then, when the law was passed, they found out they couldn't sell dolphin, in particular.

In Florida, and Chester mentioned the Keys, but in South Florida, there isn't much commercial fishing at all, because it's primarily the megalopolis has changed. It costs you a lot of money to live there, and so commercial fishing has pretty much went away. There is still charter fishing, and that charter fish was an important part of the restaurant business prior to 2012.

These charter guys sold the bycatch that their clients didn't want to these restaurants, and it was an important part of the daily supply of fresh catch to these restaurants. I have been convinced, over these conversations and meeting with these fishermen, that this is something we should reconsider.

I think how the fish are listed on the trip ticket is taken care of in Florida. You can check the box whether it was caught on a charter or a commercial trip, and so that, at least in Florida, is taken care of, and it could be taken care of in other states. I understand South Carolina's concern, because they don't allow recreational sales, but I know this went farther, and there were a number of fishermen in North Carolina who were upset when they found out that they could not continue to sell those dolphin catches, and I am sure Michelle heard some about that before.

I think we can take care of some of the double-counting issues with the new for-hire reporting requirements we have coming shortly and just being able to report that on a trip ticket in the different states, if the other two states that allow this would do that. My question to Jessica is are they allowed to sell fish caught in state waters now on a for-hire trip?

MS. MCCAWLEY: That's a very complicated question. We are working on a table, and it's different on different coasts and it's different for different species, and so there's not an easy answer to that.

MR. BOWEN: Ben, this is not what I wanted to say before you spoke, but the guy that you were speaking of on record that couldn't decide if he wanted to go commercial or for-hire, because he kept his king mackerel, and that's what made him decide to go to for-hire, I feel sorry for him if he's keeping two mackerel per day, at an average of twelve-pounds apiece. That's twenty-four pounds at three-dollars a pound. That's not really a good business plan, and so I don't necessarily

agree with that fellow that told you that. My point was that the double counting -- To Michelle's point, I don't see how we can get away from that.

MS. BECKWITH: Logbooks.

MR. BOWEN: That brings me to my next point. When we go to logbooks, it's, like I said earlier, the guys that are wanting this are the ones that are adamantly -- We had a guy at the Mackerel AP meeting down in Florida a month or so ago adamantly say, on record, that he wasn't going to fill out reports, but yet they want to sell their catch. I just can't get on the --

MS. BECKWITH: It's 5:09. Let's not make double points. Who is next?

MR. BELL: I was just going to ask -- A lot of what I've seen as an issue, and particularly this is like with cobia, is just direct sale to restaurants. There's no dealer involved and there is no reporting. In theory, if the trip were basically intercepted, it might be counted recreationally, but it's not counted commercially.

Do you see this -- If we allow this, then all of that direct sale to restaurants will go away, because everybody is going to do it right? I mean I guess that's what the selling point here is, is that it will cut out the illegal aspect and that will all go away.

MR. HARTIG: Madam Chair, to that point. I have sold to restaurants to years, Mel. All the restaurants I sell to -- I don't sell to a restaurant that doesn't have the necessary dealer permits and fill out trip tickets, to accept my catch. I don't do that, and so, basically, it's not that big of a deal for a restaurant -- If that is an important part of their fresh seafood purchasing, it would behoove them to have those permits. They're not that difficult to get, and so, to me, the restaurants that deal with it have already made that change and they have the permits and so it's not a problem.

MR. BELL: But there are some that don't. I mean that's what I'm saying. Where I am and not where you are. You're doing it exactly right, Ben.

DR. DUVAL: Just a quick clarification. I mean the reason folks are upset in North Carolina is because these are all guys who have a standard commercial fishing license. In North Carolina, to sell your fish, you have to have a standard commercial fishing license no matter what.

If you're operating as a charter captain and you have your federal dolphin wahoo charter permit, you can't just, even before the Comprehensive ACL Amendment went in place prohibiting those bag limit sales, you couldn't just sell your dolphin. You had to have a commercial license as well, and so that was one of the major reasons that folks were upset, and I just wanted to clarify that. I don't know if that's the case in the other states.

MR. HEMILRIGHT: Simply put in place a 100,000-pound quota. If you want to sell your fish, it's mandatory that you have to have logbooks and you sell to a licensed dealer and all the other things that you have to have in place, have a commercial fishing license and also have the necessary equipment aboard your vessel, whether it's safety equipment or whatever. Therefore, here is all the standards by which you're going to be allowed to sell your fish, and if you don't have these standards, then you're illegal.

Joint Dolphin Wahoo and Snapper Grouper Committees March 7, 2016 Jekyll Island, GA

I mean here is a criteria and it's pretty simple. You either follow these four things that everybody has talked about in discussions or you don't get to sell your fish, and you put a 100,000-pound quota. If you're seeing that you're bucking up close to that 100,000-pound quota or going over, then maybe the council looks at this and says there's a little bigger problem here or potential in what's going on, and so that's pretty simple. If they want to sell, you've got to follow these standards.

MR. COX: The industry has changed a lot, because what is going on now. It's all about lawyers and it's all about product liability. In the company that I have, we've got \$5-million worth of product liability insurance. We've got the FDA food safety training and we're HACCP trained. We have to do temperature tests on the fish when they come in. We've got a professional facility that is temperature controlled that HACCP comes in periodically and Marine Patrol comes in. We have a business.

We're not filleting fish on the back of a boat in hundred-degree weather and taking it to a restaurant, and so you know it just gets under my skin here when we talk about these things, because we're talking about food safety.

MS. BECKWITH: Okay. You all assume that I've got an opinion on this, but I'm going to go ahead and hold mine. It is 5:13. If no one has any other burning comments, then I think we have said enough today. Michelle, it's back to you.

DR. DUVAL: Thank you, Anna, for keeping us on task, and I agree with Jessica that I would expect that this discussion that we've had would really just inform what is going into Dolphin Wahoo Amendment 11, but we really needed to have the beginnings of this discussion, so we could at least air what the pros and cons are and get some ideas, such as have been thrown out, about how this could potentially be done. We will recess for the evening, but we start back up at 8:30 in closed session with Advisory Panel Selection, which is going to be chaired by Mr. Brewer. Thanks, everyone.

(Whereupon, the meeting was adjourned on March 7, 2016.)

Transcribed By: Amanda Thomas March 2016

Certified by. Date.	Certified By:	Date:
---------------------	---------------	-------

2016 COMMITTEES

ADVISORY PANEL SELECTION

Chester Brewer, Chair Mark Brown, Vice-Chair Zack Bowen Michelle Duval Ben Hartig Doug Haymans Staff contact: Kim Iverson

CATCH SHARES

Jack Cox, Chair
Doug Haymans, Vice-Chair
Zack Bowen
Chester Brewer
Chris Conklin
Ben Hartig
Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative
Staff contact:
Kari MacLauchlin / Brian Cheuvront

DATA COLLECTION

Mel Bell, Chair
Doug Haymans, Vice-Chair
Anna Beckwith
Mark Brown
Chris Conklin
Jack Cox
Wilson Laney
Charlie Phillips
Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative
Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

DOLPHIN WAHOO

- Anna Beckwith, Chair Zack Bowen, Vice-Chair
- Chester Brewer
- ➤ Chris Conklin
- **Roy Crabtree**
- → Doug Haymans
- Jessica McCawley

Mid-Atlantic Liaison, Tony DiLernia/Dewey

Hemilright

Staff contact: Brian Cheuvront

HABITAT PROTECTION AND ECOSYSTEM-BASED MANAGEMENT

Doug Haymans, Chair
Wilson Laney, Vice Chair
Mel Bell
Chester Brewer
Jack Cox
Jessica McCawley
Charlie Phillips
LTJG Tara Pray
Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative
Staff contact: Roger Pugliese- FEP
Chip Collier - CEBA

EXECUTIVE/FINANCE

Michelle Duval, Chair Charlie Phillips, Vice Chair Mel Bell Ben Hartig Jessica McCawley Staff contact: Bob Mahood

GOLDEN CRAB

Ben Hartig, Chair Charlie Phillips, Vice-Chair Chris Conklin Jack Cox Jessica McCawley Staff contact: Brian Cheuvront

HIGHLY MIGRATORY SPECIES

Anna Beckwith, Chair Jack Cox, Vice-Chair Zack Bowen Chester Brewer Mark Brown Staff contact: Brian Cheuvront

(Continued)

2016 COMMITTEES (continued)

SNAPPER GROUPER

- Michelle Duval, Chair
- ➤ Jessica McCawley, Vice Chair
- ➤ Anna Beckwith
- ➤ Mel Bell
- ➤ Zack Bowen
- Chester Brewer
- Mark Brown
- Chris Conklin
- → Jack Cox
- Roy Crabtree
- Ben Hartig
- Doug Haymans
- Charlie Phillips
 - Mid-Atlantic Liaison, Tony DeLernia/Dewey
- Hemilright
 - Staff contact: Myra Brouwer

SOPPs

Chris Conklin, Chair
Doug Haymans, Vice-Chair
Anna Beckwith
Roy Crabtree
Michelle Duval
Ben Hartig
LTJG Tara Pray
Staff contact: Bob Mahood

SPINY LOBSTER

Jessica McCawley, Chair Ben Hartig, Vice-Chair Chester Brewer Jack Cox Roy Crabtree Staff contact: Kari MacLauchlin

2016 COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP (continued)

Doug Haymans
Coastal Resources Division
GA Dept. of Natural Resources
One Conservation Way, Suite 300
Brunswick, GA 31520-8687
912/264-7218 (ph); 912/262-2318 (f)
doughaymans@gmail.com

Dr. Wilson Laney
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
South Atlantic Fisheries Coordinator
P.O. Box 33683
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617
(110 Brooks Ave
237 David Clark Laboratories,
NCSU Campus
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617)
919/515-5019 (ph)
919/515-4415 (f)
Wilson Laney@fws.gov

Jessica McCawley Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 2590 Executive Center Circle E., Suite 201 Tallahassee, FL 32301 850/487-0554 (ph); 850/487-4847(f) jessica.mccawley@myfwc.com LTJG Tara Pray U.S. Coast Guard 909 SE 1st Ave. Miami, FL 33131 tara.c.pray@uscg.mil

Deirdre Warner-Kramer
Office of Marine Conservation
OES/OMC
2201 C Street, N.W.
Department of State, Room 5806
Washington, DC 20520
202/647-3228 (ph); 202/736-7350 (f)
Warner-KramerDM@state.gov

LEAMN BOSANGE

Dr. BONNIE PONWITH

MONICO SMIT-BRUNDLU

Dr. JACK McGUERN

Dr. GEOMRE SEDBORY

ERIKA BURGESS

DR. MANCEL REICHENT

COUNCIL STAFF

Executive Director

Gregg T. Waugh gregg.waugh@safmc.net

Public Information Officer

Kim Iverson kim.iverson@safmc.net

Fishery Outreach Specialist

Amber Von Harten amber.vonharten@safmc.net

Senior Fishery Biologist

Roger Pugliese roger.pugliese@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist

Myra Brouwer myra.brouwer@safmc.net

Fishery Biologist

Dr. Mike Errigo mike.errigo@safmc.net

Fisheries Social Scientist

Dr. Kari MacLauchlin kari.maclauchlin@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist

Chip Collier Chip.Collier@safmc.net

Staff Economist

Dr. Brian Cheuvront
brian.cheuvront@safmc.net

Science and Statistics Program Manager

John Carmichael
john.carmichael@safmc.net

SEDAR Coordinators

Dr. Julie Neer - <u>julie.neer@safmc.net</u> Julia Byrd - <u>julia.byrd@safmc.net</u>

Administrative Officer

Mike Collins mike.collins@safmc.net

Financial Secretary

Debra Buscher deb.buscher@safmc.net

Admin. Secretary /Travel Coordinator

Cindy Chaya cindy.chaya@safmc.net

Purchasing & Grants

Julie O'Dell julie.odell@safmc.net



South Atlantic Fishery Management Council – March 2016 Council Meeting

Jekyll Island, GA

Date: Monday, March 7, 2016

Committee: Joint Dolphin Wahoo/Snapper Grouper

PLEASE SIGN IN -

In order to have a record of your attendance at each meeting and your name included in the minutes, we ask that you sign this sheet for the meeting shown above.

Name:	Mailing Address/E-mail: (If your information is currently on file, please check the box.)	How do you participate in South Atlantic fisheries? (Check all that apply)	
Lindsey	On File	Commercial	NGO □
Lindsey Jeffcoai	Blooming date 61A 31302	Recreational	Govt. 🗆
		Charter/ For-hire	Other Describe
Susan	On File	Commercial	NGO □
Susan Shipman		Recreational	Govt. 🗆
		Charter/ For-hire □	Other Describe
	On File	Commercial	NGO 🗵
FRANK		Recreational	Govt. 🗆
		Charter/ For-hire	Other Describe
Justin Copulis cet	On File	Commercial	NGO ⊠
		Recreational	Govt.
		Charter/ For-hire	Other Describe
	On File	Commercial	NGO □
		Recreational	Govt. □
		Charter/ For-hire	Other Describe
	On File	Commercial	NGO □
		Recreational	Govt. □
		Charter/ For-hire	Other Describe

MON 7 MAR 16

Last Name	First Name	Email Address	
Alvarado	Nicolas	Nicolas.Alvarado@noaa.gov	
Bademan	Martha	martha.bademan@myfwc.com	
Bailey	Adam	adam.bailey@noaa.gov	
Ballenger	Joey	ballengerj@dnr.sc.gov	
Brennan	Ken	kenneth.brennan@noaa.gov	
Bresnen	Anthony	anthony.bresnen@myfwc.com	
Byrd	Julia	julia.byrd@safmc.net	
Clarke	Lora	lclarke@pewtrusts.org	
DeVictor	Rick	rick.devictor@noaa.gov	
Erwin	Gwen	gwen.erwin@myfwc.com	
Hadley	John	john.hadley@ncdenr.gov	
L	1	captaindrifter@bellsouth.net	
Lee	Jennifer	Jennifer.Lee@noaa.gov	
MacLauchlin	KAri	kari.maclauchlin@samfc.net	
Mahood	Bob	rmahood@mindspring.com	
Malinowski	Rich	rich.malinowski@noaa.gov	
Mehta	Nikhil	nikhil.mehta@noaa.gov	
Rawls	Kathy	kathy.rawls@ncdenr.gov	
Schalit	David	dschalit@gmail.com	
Scott	Alison	alison.scott@noaa.gov	
Sedberry	George	george.sedberry@noaa.gov	
Shepard	Nathan	ballinimpression@yahoo.com	
Soss	Jeff	captainjeff@savannahfishingadventures.com	
Takade-			
Heumacher	Helen	htakade@edf.org	
Von Harten	Во	capt_bo@hotmail.com	
holiman	stephen	stephen.holiman@noaa.gov	
sandorf	scott	scott.sandorf@noaa.gov	
scott	john	renamj2002@yahoo.com	
smart	tracey	smartt@dnr.sc.gov	